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Many Parts. One Culture. A Common Vision.
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U.S. Concrete is built from many parts by business owners whose companies have come
together to leverage geographical coverage and economies of scale. To achieve this, we have
shaped one culture that embraces the spirit of entrepreneurialism while capitalizing on the
benefits of long-range national strategies and the power of sharing a common vision.
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Operations and Locations

concrete products and services to the construction industry in several major markets in the
United States. As of March 15, 2002, we had 85
fixed and nine portable ready-mixed concrete
plants, eight pre-cast concrete plants, three

IBC Corporate Information

concrete block plants and one aggregates
quarry. During 2001, these facilities produced
5.6 million cubic yards of ready-mixed concrete, 7.1 million eight-inch equivalent block
units and 1.0 million tons of aggregates. Our
common stock trades on the Nasdaq Stock
Market under the symbol “RMIX.”

Financial Highlights
(in thousands of dollars)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001

2000

Revenues

$ 493,591

$ 394,636

$

167,912

$

66,499

$

53,631

Income From
Continuing Operations

$

$

$

16,893

$

6,883

$

4,242

Total Assets

$ 430,836

$ 357,490

$ 212,734

$

26,640

$

19,837

Long-Term Debt,
Including Current
Maturities

$ 163,775

$

157,134

$

57,375

$

3,530

$

2,660

Total Stockholders’
Equity

$

$ 150,555

$

110,793

$

15,154

$

10,731

35,937

188,315

41,386

1999

1998

1997

The above historical financial information is of Central Concrete Supply Co., Inc., one of our initial six acquisitions, prior to June 1, 1999 and of U.S. Concrete and its consolidated subsidiaries after that date.
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LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

We are proud to report that we

Our most important achievement

made great strides in 2001 towards

we were the primary provider of

this past year was our success in

the complete integration of all our

ready-mixed concrete. This occurred

continuing to execute our strategic

acquisitions into U.S. Concrete. We

in the Dallas/Ft. Worth market region

plan in the face of the nation’s

now stand united as an enterprise

with unusual amounts of rainfall

economic slowdown and the world-

with a shared vision, supported by

and in the Michigan market with

wide uncertainty following the

state-of-the-art operating systems,

excessive snowfall and freezing

tragic events of September 11th.

integrated financial reporting and

ground conditions throughout the

Looking back on the year’s activi-

common standards and practices.

winter of 2000-2001.

ties, it is clear that our plan has the

Inherent in the very nature of a

A second challenge concerned

built-in flexibility to enable us to

company such as ours is a wide

litigation that alleged that ready-

adjust to changing market needs,

variety of technology platforms,

mixed concrete supplied by our

unseasonable weather conditions

legacy systems, operational tech-

Northern California subsidiary for

and recessionary trends in construc-

niques and protocols that must be

use in a major residential develop-

tion, yet retain the fiscal agility to

abandoned or converted. The effort

ment project did not meet the spec-

take advantage of focused comple-

requires the training and retraining

ifications for the project. Although

mentary acquisition opportunities in

of personnel at all levels within our

the developer initially sought

targeted regions. We are pleased to

company — from delivery profes-

damages in excess of $7 million,

have completed seven acquisitions

sionals in the field to the top levels

we ultimately recorded a pretax

of ready-mixed and pre-cast con-

of management. We are pleased to

charge of approximately $2.9 mil-

crete businesses in 2001 that we

report that the technology integra-

lion relating to the settlement of

believe strengthen our presence in

tion drive we initiated in 2000 is

this claim. As a by-product of the

several of our markets. Despite the

continuing successfully with our

settlement, we entered into a two-

challenges we faced in 2001, we feel

seven 2001 acquisitions. We are

year supply agreement with the

quite fortunate to have ended the

confident that the majority of our

developer to continue to provide

year on a note of cautious optimism.

markets and regions will be fully

concrete for use in that project in

functional on our financial and

Northern California.

5.6
5.0

operational systems in the upcoming year.

3.6

We encountered several challenges
in 2001 that negatively impacted
’99

A third challenge that we faced,
along with the entire nation, was
the slowdown of the U.S. economy

Meeting Our Challenges

’00

’01

Ready-Mixed Concrete Volume
Annual Run Rate
As Of December 31
(in millions of cubic yards)
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major construction projects in which

our year-over-year results. First, we
encountered weather conditions
that effectively halted a number of

and the ripple effect that widespread reduced spending has had
on the construction industry. In
two of our key markets, Memphis
and Dallas/Ft. Worth, we experienced a significant drop-off of

From left: Vincent D. Foster - Chairman of the Board / Eugene P. Martineau - Chief Executive Officer and President
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business. In order to respond to a

most recently acquired businesses,

one pre-cast plant and one concrete

situation that we believe to be tem-

we integrated into our existing oper-

block plant and provides us with

porary, we began implementing

ations in their respective markets.

expertise in the manufacture of

cost control measures and profit

x

improvement plans. Since these two

Hill, California, was integrated

commonly used in highway retain-

markets were, in effect, contracting

into Central Precast in Northern

ing walls and other wall systems.

rather than expanding, it became

California to expand our product

necessary to resize. Our streamlining

line in that market.

efforts included combining opera-

x

tions, implementing new and more

Arizona, was integrated into our

Hamburg Quarry, located in

effective methodologies and rede-

Southwest Precast operation to

Hamburg, New Jersey. We acquired

ploying assets such as trucks and

extend our market reach in Arizona.

the Hamburg Quarry to serve this

manpower to more robust markets.

x

Our ability to effect these cost-cut-

Maryville, Tennessee, was integrated

a stable supply of construction

ting changes quickly is a testament

into our Knoxville operations to

aggregates to our existing ready-

to our overall flexibility.

strengthen our position in that market.

mixed concrete operations in the

We faced a fourth challenge

x

Sierra Precast, based in Morgan

Smith Precast, based in Phoenix,

Concrete Industries, based in

The ready-mixed concrete assets

pre-cast concrete panel systems

In early January 2002 we entered
the aggregates industry by acquiring LaFarge Aggregates Southeast’s

growing market and to provide

Northern New Jersey market. In

in the aftermath of the terrorist

of L.H. Lacy, including a state-of-

the coming year, we intend to

attacks on our country. We were

the-art ready-mixed concrete facility,

explore additional opportunities to

impacted by major construction

were integrated into our Dallas/Ft.

integrate aggregates businesses into

delays for security reasons in both

Worth operations and should result

our existing operations.

our Northern New Jersey market

in increased fleet utilization and

(adjacent to New York City)

improved market coverage.

and Washington, D.C. market.

x

Additionally, we experienced con-

Central New Jersey, was integrated

struction delays at many of our

into our Atlantic region operations.

projects located in close proximity

Central operates two ready-mixed

to the major airports in Boston,

concrete plants, one concrete prod-

Newark and Washington, D.C.

ucts plant and four building materi-

Central Concrete, based in

al outlets and further strengthens

Continuing to Acquire
Complementary Businesses
During 2001, we announced the
acquisition of seven ready-mixed
and pre-cast concrete companies,
which, with the exception of our

our market leadership position in
New Jersey.
x

Wyoming Concrete, based in

Wyoming, Delaware, was integrated into our Atlantic region to add
seven ready-mixed concrete plants,

Building a Different Kind of
Concrete Company
Today our industry is comprised
primarily of vertically integrated
multinational building materials
companies whose primary focus is
the production and distribution of
raw materials used in the manufacture of concrete, or independentlyowned family businesses focused
on individual markets. We believe
that our strategic plan, to which
we’ve strictly adhered since our
inception, differentiates us from
our competitors.
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“We believe that our
strategic plan, to which
we’ve strictly adhered
since our inception, differentiates us from our
competitors.”

Strategic Acquisitions. Our long-

Building a company such as ours

term strategy for complementary

is a long process. However, there

acquisitions is to acquire ready-

are times when progress is impeded

mixed and/or pre-cast concrete and

by outside forces such as economic

related companies only when they

trends or other events outside our

are the right fit for our existing

control. This past year challenged

regional markets. We call these

us to become a stronger company.

“tuck-in” acquisitions, and they

We believe that we have lived up to

serve to increase our market cover-

the challenge, ending the year with

Internal Strength. This past year,

age and improve our productivity,

renewed dedication and better pre-

instead of continuing such an

while giving us the opportunity to

pared to deliver on our promise to

aggressive pace of acquisition, we

reduce administrative costs over

our stockholders.

spent more time and effort focusing

time. An example would be the

on the internal growth and infra-

2001 acquisition of L.H. Lacy in

is now better positioned — opera-

structure of our company. This

Dallas/Ft. Worth. Serving the

tionally, fiscally and geographically

focus reflects our belief that a

central Dallas corridor, L.H. Lacy

— to continue the process of build-

strong operational and managerial

effectively plugged the coverage

ing the premier concrete company

infrastructure is paramount to

gap between our downtown Dallas

in the U.S. We see as much, if not

our continued growth and success.

and North Dallas service areas.

more, opportunity in the coming

Within our executive ranks, we

When appropriate, we will also

years as we did when we launched

have significant concrete industry

seek to enter new geographic mar-

U.S. Concrete. From many parts,

expertise, divided equally among

kets through strategic platform

we have created one company with

operational, marketing and techni-

acquisitions into which we can con-

one culture and a common vision.

cal disciplines.

solidate other tuck-in acquisitions to

We are on the right path.

Operational Integration. With

achieve market leadership positions.

It is our belief that U.S. Concrete

geographic coverage as wide-ranging as ours, operations are some-

From Many Parts to One Company

what decentralized. However, in

We believe that a unified U.S.

order to manage the enterprise in

Concrete culture is critical to our

the most efficient and productive

success. We have successfully

manner possible, it is imperative

formed a unified corporate culture

that all regions are fully integrated

that encompasses all existing regional

into the U.S. Concrete system. We

operations in 2001. Today, we con-

have standardized our operating

duct business secure in the knowl-

procedures in each of our business

edge that our short-term objectives

units, similar to our standardized

and long-range strategies are

financial reporting process.

embraced and shared company-wide.

Eugene P. Martineau
Chief Executive Officer and President

Vincent D. Foster
Chairman of the Board
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Pictured at EASTERN CONCRETE MATERIALS, INC. IN ROSELAND, NEW JERSEY are (clockwise from top): Brian Conklin, Delivery Professional; Drew Hope, Vice President of Operations;
Frank Matts, Multi-Plant Manager; and Michael Mitschele, President, USC Atlantic, Inc.

ENTREPRENEURIALISM

We are comprised of a collection of
ready-mixed and related concrete products and
services companies founded and led by entrepreneurs,
and unified by our common objective. It is this wealth
of wisdom and creativity, coupled with our drive, that
sets us apart in our industry. Preserving our brand of
entrepreneurialism as we develop our culture is vital
to the long-range success of our company.

BUILDING ACCORDING TO PLAN

Our Year in Numbers
For 2001, revenues were up 25% to $493.6 million from revenues
of $394.6 million for 2000. EBITDA before special charges was
$55.4 million for 2001, versus EBITDA of $53.9 million for 2000.
Net income before special charges for 2001 was $12.6 million, or
$0.51 per diluted share, compared to net income of $16.9 million,
or $0.78 per diluted share, for 2000. Free cash flow for 2001 was
$36.2 million, or $1.47 per diluted share, compared to free cash
flow of $3.5 million, or $0.16 per diluted share, for 2000. Cash
EPS before special charges for 2001 was $0.67 per diluted share,
compared to cash EPS of $0.93 per diluted share for 2000.
Net income after special charges for 2001 was $9.5 million, or
$0.39 per diluted share, compared to net income of $16.9 million,
Implementation of fleet management software improved our cus-

or $0.78 per diluted share, for 2000.
Special charges recorded in 2001 included pretax charges totaling

tomer responsiveness and fleet
readiness and reduced mixer truck

$2.85 million relating to the settlement of the Del Webb litigation

costs and travel time between batch

and a $2.1 million pretax charge for incentive compensation.

plants and job sites, such as the

Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding on a diluted

Stanford University parking garage

basis increased 14% to 24.6 million shares for 2001 from 21.6 million

project in Palo Alto, California.

shares for 2000.
Our total assets at December 31, 2001 stood at $430.8 million,
our long-term debt was $163.8 million and our stockholders’ equity
had increased to $188.3 million, giving us a long-term debt-to-equity
ratio of 46.5%.

Preserving Our Entrepreneurial Character
Entrepreneurs start and grow successful businesses, usually by
capitalizing on an attribute that makes them unique and differentiates
them from the competition. An entrepreneur is an independent
thinker who is creative, perceptive, proactive and willing to weigh
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risk versus reward. Entrepreneurs see the “big picture” and understand where they fit in. U.S. Concrete is made up of a collection
of companies founded and led by entrepreneurs, and it is this wealth
of industry wisdom and creativity that we believe differentiates us
from other “consolidators.” Nurturing and sustaining our brand
of entrepreneurialism is vital to our long-range success. We are a
united company of independent thinkers who are committed to a
common vision.
This notion of unity is critically important to our regional operating
units. Working together, we are better able to withstand economic
slumps or adverse climatic conditions, whereas individual companies
would be many times more vulnerable. For example, a concrete company whose market is impacted by a sharp decrease in construction

During 2001, we consolidated the

spending needs to rapidly downsize in order to survive. However,

administrative and financial func-

when market conditions improve, the pared-down company may
find itself too depleted to regain and retain market share. As a

tions of the four companies that
we have purchased in Michigan
into regional headquarters offices.

unified enterprise, U.S. Concrete can rapidly redeploy assets from
a slumping market to a more robust one and return those assets to
the recovering market when needed.
Another benefit of corporate unification is the ongoing develop-

Michigan Region Consolidation
Completed
In Process

Ç
Ç

ment of business-enhancing initiatives that can be implemented
enterprise-wide in a timely manner. This sharing of best practices
and innovative technologies serves to empower our regional
operating units to better serve their customers, grow market share

Cornillie

and generate new revenue channels for the benefit of the whole
organization. Finally, corporate unity keeps us focused on our
Superior

proven successful long-term strategy and ongoing fiscal growth.

Metzen

Ç

Ç

A common by-product of rapid growth is loss of control of a

Ç

Farmington Hills

An Infrastructure Focused on Performance

Ç

Ç

Cornillie

Fendt

company’s remote operations. In effect, central management becomes
overwhelmed with the task of keeping track of all parts of the company.
(Continued on page 12)
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Pictured at HAMBURG QUARRY IN SUSSEX COUNTY, NEW JERSEY are (clockwise from top): Lyne Kemenczy, Head Dispatcher; Warren Paling, Plant Supervisor;
Michael Gentoso, President, Eastern Concrete Materials, Inc.; Terry Walker, Garage Supervisor; and Charles Conklin, Loader Operator.

PERFORMANCE

We have developed our management infrastructure in advance of our future growth
to ensure the necessary systems, talent and skill
sets required to facilitate the integration of acquired
companies into our operations and, more importantly,
into our family. In this way, we are ensuring that the
critical tools needed to manage more effectively and
profitably are available, functioning and utilized.

(Continued from page 9)
85

As a result, remote operations become even more so, and eventually
the weight of unmanaged field operations drags the company down.

73

At U.S. Concrete, we have been very careful to grow our management

59

structure at the same pace as, or ahead of, our acquisition schedule.
Integrating an acquired business requires the allocation of significant resources in regards to training, manpower and the conversion
’99

’00

’01

Fixed Ready-Mixed Concrete Plants
As Of December 31

of administrative, operating, accounting, materials management, fleet
tracking, maintenance and other systems. System redundancies are
eliminated to provide for more efficient use of equipment and deliver
cost savings. In addition to implementing U.S. Concrete systems into

Our integration measures were

newly acquired businesses, company-wide systems integration efforts

adopted for very specific reasons,
but primarily to equip our local
management teams and our
corporate management with the
critical tools needed to manage

continued throughout 2001.
Our Command Series® dispatching software system provides
the capability to effect dramatic improvement in fleet readiness, dis®

patching and billing efficiencies. Our TMT system tracks warranty

more effectively.

status, schedules preventive and ongoing maintenance, tracks maintenance costs, provides inventories of all parts and pertinent supplies
and issues purchase orders. With the exception of our most recently
acquired businesses, all financial reporting and accounting functions
for all our regions were successfully converted to a common platform
as of December 31, 2001.
These integration measures were adopted for very specific reasons
— to equip our local management teams and corporate management
with the critical tools needed to manage day-to-day business more
effectively, increase productivity, reduce costs and rapidly respond to
market trends and/or market-impacting events. A beneficial by-product
of this system-wide integration is the streamlining of our supply chains
and our ability to negotiate more advantageous terms with our primary
supply partners. We are working on forging more strategic alliances
with suppliers of parts, equipment and maintenance services. As a company that has now expanded to a truly national footprint, we believe
these efforts and achievements are crucial to long-term cost control.
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Optimizing Operations
Although we define ourselves as a ready-mixed and related concrete
products company, we are capable of providing our customers with
much more. Through diligent and focused research and development
efforts, we have identified a number of technical processes and technologies that result in value-added products needed by specific customer groups in various regions of the country — such as environmentally responsible products for “green” buildings and materials
that are more attractive to architects as interior and exterior decorative finishes. Not only are we creating new revenue channels with
these value-added products, but we are realizing enhanced profits

High profile projects in our New

and margins on these products because they are higher-end concrete

Jersey/New York market, such as

products with greater value. Also, through the introduction of these

Goldman Sachs’ new headquarters
in Jersey City, will benefit from our

value-added products, we believe we can establish market differenti-

entry into the aggregates industry

ation and leadership for these products while securing an established

with our recent acquisition of the

company identity in each region.

Hamburg Quarry.

In addition to value-added product development, we are focused
on improving our customer service relationships. We have established teams that identify best practices that should be shared across
all regions and troubleshoot potential problems to determine how to
prevent them. Through this effort, we are working to continuously
improve our operations, our products and their delivery.
To leverage our marketing strategies this past year, we have developed accurate market forecasting models to more precisely gauge
market dynamics and to accurately estimate future need for equipment,
product and manpower deployment, as well as to determine where and
when to implement price increases. These models also serve to improve
our understanding of the Company’s various regional markets and
our competitors within these markets. As we integrate our strategic
complementary acquisitions, we find ourselves better positioned to
pursue larger-scale projects, such as major public works contracts,
because both our capacity and our range have increased measurably.
(Continued on page 16)
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Pictured at CENTRAL CONCRETE SUPPLY CO., INC. IN SAN JOSE, CALIFORNIA are (clockwise from top): Ed DeBrock, Delivery Professional; Jeff Davis, Executive Vice President of Operations;
Tom Albanese, Executive Vice President of Sales; Laurie Cerrito, Vice President of Finance; and William Albanese, President.

OPTIMIZATION

We are creating new revenue
channels through the development of value-added
products and processes that promise to bring higher
profits and margins while answering the needs of
our customer groups. Meanwhile, we continue to
improve our product quality, delivery standards and
customer relationships through the sharing of best
practices company-wide.

(Continued from page 13)

Organizational and Fiscal Agility
A well-positioned, well-managed company can ride out an economic
downturn through fiscal conservatism, operational streamlining and
prudent allocation of available resources. This is, in effect, what U.S.
Concrete did during 2001. As the year progressed, it became evident
that measures were required to protect our balance sheet and our
organizational strength. Our acquisition program became less
aggressive. We redeployed assets, mothballed plants and trimmed
headcount where necessary. Instead of external growth, we focused
on building our company’s internal strength and integrating all our
operations for maximum operating and cost efficiencies. Our rapid
response to a slowing economy preserved our balance sheet and
positioned us for future growth as the expected recovery occurs.
In a time of tightening credit markets, we renegotiated our credit
facility with a consortium of nine banks for $188 million in borrowThe majority of public works projects
use pre-cast concrete products such

ing capacity with a maturity date of May 2004. At December 31,

as storm water drain pipes, curb

2001, we had $119.4 million of remaining capacity under this

inlets, manhole vaults, utility vaults

facility, of which we could borrow $16.1 million based on our leverage

and a variety of concrete panel sys-

ratio at that date; however, our ability to borrow additional amounts

tems for highway retaining walls and
other wall systems.

would increase to the extent that we use the facility to fund the
acquisition of additional businesses with positive cash flow.
After a year of strengthening our internal infrastructure, we
believe we are in a better position to take advantage of the nation’s
expected economic recovery. Our field operations have proven flexible in addressing shifting market trends. Regional centralizations of
many of our administrative and operational functions, completed
during 2001, are delivering significant improvements in customer
responsiveness and in reducing truck travel time and cost.
Enterprise-wide integration of common systems has allowed us to
streamline operations, eliminating bottlenecks caused by redundant
administrative functions and unnecessary capital equipment, thus
reducing general and administrative costs and capital expenditures.

16

Additionally, because our revenue streams derive from various
segments of the construction industry — commercial, residential and
public works — we are able to shift our marketing emphasis from
one segment to another to pursue projects that will help to flatten out
the peaks and valleys of national economic cycles and construction
spending trends. For example, in our Northern California market,
particularly in the San Francisco Bay area, commercial construction
has declined; however, activity in the public sector has increased.
We are actively pursuing various public projects such as bridge
reconstruction, wastewater treatment facilities and municipal parking structures to make up for the reduced activity elsewhere. As a

Now managed from regional head-

result, year over year, we have maintained both our revenue run rate

quarters offices in Elmwood Park,

and our visibility in the market. In effect, the economic recession

New Jersey, the Atlantic region con-

has served to validate our business model and long-range strategy.

solidation brought together assets
located in New Jersey, New York,
Delaware and Maryland (serving

Our Performance by Region
Northern California, by far our largest market and accounting for

the Washington, D.C. market).

approximately 41% of our revenue stream for 2001, started out
strong in the first half of the year. As the dot.com and technology
sector experienced its marked decline, commercial construction

Atlantic Region Consolidation
Completed
In Process

Ç
Ç

began slowing. In response, we began to shift our sales and market-

Hamburg
Ç

Elmwood Park

ing focus to target customers in the public works and institutional

Ç
Ç

Ç
Ç

construction segment. In the latter half of 2001, we were awarded

Eastern

significant projects at Stanford University and San Jose State
Central

University, in addition to several large wastewater treatment facilities, bridge and highway projects, and municipal parking structures
in the Sacramento and San Francisco Bay areas.

Dyna
Lanham

Ç

Ç

Our North Texas/Southwest Oklahoma region was affected by
delays caused by severe weather and softening in demand over the

Wyoming

Opportunity

year. After rapid implementation of a profit improvement plan in
the Dallas metropolitan market, we are seeing an improvement in
profitability as we enter 2002.
(Continued on page 20)
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Pictured at SUPERIOR MATERIALS, INC. IN NEW BALTIMORE, MICHIGAN are (clockwise from top): Tom Peters, Plant Manager; Rob Cherry, Customer Service Manager, Michigan Region;
Harold Young, Yardman; and Jeff Spahr, President, Michigan Region.

AGILITY

Our fiscal conservatism, operational
streamlining and prudent allocation of resources
have placed us in an appealing position. Our marketing
and operations infrastructure can handle shifting
market needs, and we believe we can continue to
grow without overtaxing our balance sheet. With
our strengthened position, we are poised to take
advantage of the nation’s economic recovery.

(Continued from page 17)
$351.9
$307.6
senior
credit
facility
$62.0

$167.9

senior
credit
facility
$68.6

senior
sub
debt
$95.0

senior
sub
debt
$95.0

’99

also suffered construction delays caused by winter weather. In this
market, 45% of our revenue stream is derived from residential construction. As a consequence of the decline in housing starts, 2001
was an “off” year in volume, and margins fell from 18% to 13%.
Our Atlantic region added capacity and range with the acquisition

senior
credit
facility
$57.1

equity
$110.8

Housing starts were down in 2001 in our Michigan region, which

of Wyoming Concrete that serves the Central and South Delaware
equity
$150.6

equity
$188.3

markets. Although street closures and security inspections in
Washington, D.C. hampered deliveries in the market in the aftermath

’00

’01

Components Of Capital
As Of December 31
(in millions of dollars)

of the attack on the Pentagon, we ended the year with strengthening
in the area’s residential market and resurgence in the public sector
marketplace as well. Within the region, our Northern New Jersey
operations experienced a building year, with the integration of two

In 2001, we took measures to pro-

acquisitions that added significant capacity and reach in the area.

tect our market share and our bal-

Also impacted by the terrorist attacks, this market was rebounding

ance sheet. We slowed our acquisi-

with strengthening in the residential housing and high-rise multi-

tion program and we renegotiated
our credit facility so we can continue to grow without overextending our financial resources.

family sectors by the end of the third quarter of 2001.
In our Tennessee region, Memphis suffered a decline in demand
stretching out over several quarters, and profitability dipped below
acceptable levels. Moving rapidly in the second quarter, we implemented a profit improvement plan and resized our local organization
to better reflect current business conditions. These efforts included
a reduction in headcount, the closing of three batch plants and the
elimination of 15 mixer trucks from the fleet through sale, retirement or reassignment to other U.S. Concrete locations. In total, we
realized approximately $1.0 million in cost savings through these
measures. Knoxville is a strong residential market, but was impacted
by the timing of some major state projects.
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A Future Full of Opportunity
In the construction industry, markets differ from region to region.
Each is susceptible to different influences and building and/or development trends. Some are resistant to broad economic impacts, and
others are vulnerable to seasonal cycles. In general, the U.S. construction industry has outperformed our country’s economy in recent
years. And we have found that, although one or two of our markets
may have lagged in housing starts or commercial construction, other
regions have the capability to make up the difference. Year over year,
U.S. Concrete continues to grow.
As we enter our fourth fiscal year as a publicly held corporation,
we are a company characterized by a strong internal structure and a

The mix designs of our raw
materials (water, cement, admixtures and aggregates) are comput-

culture of unity. Every aspect of our organization has been strength-

er-controlled and monitored at all

ened measurably over the past year. Our business methodology has

U.S. Concrete plants to ensure that

been honed to promote best practices system-wide. We are focused

each batch will perform to the cus-

on technology and the development of value-added products. Our

tomer’s satisfaction.

sales and marketing efforts are targeted on emerging and long-range
opportunities. Our management is poised to accommodate steady
growth without overtaxing our administrative capabilities. And our
operations and financial management are optimized to enhance productivity, profitability, flexibility and economy. All in all, we believe
we are well positioned to continue executing our proven business
model, enact proactive market strategies and continue our integration efforts as we move forward.
The events and achievements of the past year have demonstrated
that U.S. Concrete is a company that offers genuine value, not only
for the near-term, but also for the long haul. Our initial public offering, nearly three years ago, was timed to take advantage of perceived
opportunities in the marketplace for a strategically savvy organization. We believe that there exists today as much opportunity for
growth and success of our company, and we believe that tomorrow
will bring even more.
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FACILITIES AS OF MARCH 15, 2002

Ready-Mixed
Location

Fixed Portable Total Pre-cast Block Aggregates

2001
Ready-Mixed
Volume
(in thousands of cubic yards)

Northern California

20

–

20

5

–

–

2,108

Atlantic

27

6

33

1

2

1

1,557

North Texas/Southwest Oklahoma

16

2

18

–

–

–

787

Michigan

11

–

11

–

1

–

647

Tennessee/Northern Mississippi

11

1

12

–

–

–

469

Southern California/Arizona

–

–

–

2

–

–

–

85

9

94

8

3

1

5,568

Revenue

Geographic Diversification

States

13.9%
9.2%
41.0%

Today (March 2002)

5.8%

26.3%

6

N. California

3.8%

6

S. California/Arizona

6

Atlantic

6

Tennessee/N. Mississippi

14.5%

At the IPO (May 1999)
85.5%

22

6

Michigan

6

N. Texas/S.W. Oklahoma

▲
◆ ▲ ▲▲
▲ ▲▲ ▲
▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ NY
▲▲
▲

PA
■

▲
▲

NJ

MD

●
■

▲
▲

▲
▲▲

DE

▲▲
▲ ▲▲

Detail of Atlantic

▲
▲
▲
▲▲ ■
▲ ▲▲
▲▲▲

▲▲
▲ ▲▲

●

▲▲ ▲
▲▲▲▲
●

▲▲
▲▲

▲▲

▲▲▲▲
▲▲ ▲ ▲▲

▲ Fixed Ready-Mixed

● Pre-Cast

■

Block

◆ Aggregates

●

Santa Rosa

▲▲
▲▲▲

Sacramento
▲
▲

San Francisco

▲

▲
▲

●
▲

● ▲▲
▲

▲

●

San Jose
● ▲▲ ▲
▲▲

Detail of Northern California
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Statements we make in this Annual Report on Form 10-K which express a belief, expectation or intention, as well as those
that are not historical fact, are forward-looking statements under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
These forward-looking statements are subject to various risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including those to which we
refer under the heading ‘‘Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements’’ following Items 1 and 2 of Part
I of this report.
PART I
Items 1 and 2. Business and Properties
General
U.S. Concrete provides ready-mixed concrete and related concrete products and services to the construction industry
in several major markets in the United States. As of March 15, 2002, we have 85 fixed and nine portable ready-mixed
concrete plants, eight pre-cast concrete plants, three concrete block plants and one aggregates quarry. During 2001, these
facilities produced 5.6 million cubic yards of ready-mixed concrete, 7.1 million eight-inch equivalent block units and 1.0
million tons of aggregates.
Our operations consist principally of formulating, preparing, delivering and placing ready-mixed concrete at the job
sites of our customers. We provide services intended to reduce our customers’ overall construction costs by lowering the
installed, or ‘‘in-place,’’ cost of concrete. These services include the formulation of new mixtures for specific design uses,
on-site and lab-based product quality control and delivery programs we configure to meet our customers’ needs.
We completed our initial public offering in May 1999. At the same time, we acquired six ready-mixed concrete and
related concrete businesses and began operating 26 fixed concrete plants in three major markets in the United States. Since
our IPO and through March 15, 2002, we have acquired an additional 22 ready-mixed concrete and related concrete
businesses, and are operating an additional 59 fixed concrete plants, in seven additional major markets in the United States.
To increase our geographic diversification and expand the scope of our operations, we seek to acquire businesses
operating under quality management teams in growing markets. Our acquisition strategy has two primary objectives. In a
new market, we target one or more companies that can serve as platform businesses into which we can integrate other
operations. In markets where we have existing operations and seek to increase our market penetration, we pursue tuck-in
acquisitions.
Industry Overview
Annual usage of ready-mixed concrete in the United States remains at record levels. According to information
available from the National Ready Mixed Concrete Association and F.W. Dodge, total sales from the production and
delivery of ready-mixed concrete in the United States grew over the past three years as follows:
Year

Sales
($ in millions)

1999 ....................................................................................................................... $ 25,538
2000 ....................................................................................................................... $ 26,629
2001 ....................................................................................................................... $ 27,137
According to F.W. Dodge data, the four major segments of the construction industry accounted for the following
approximate percentages of the total volume of ready-mixed concrete produced in the United States in 2001:
Residential construction .............................................................................................
Commercial and industrial construction.....................................................................
Street and highway construction and paving..............................................................
Other public works and infrastructure construction ...................................................
Total ....................................................................................................

26%
25%
21%
28%
100%

Ready-mixed concrete is a versatile, low-cost manufactured material the construction industry uses in substantially all
its projects. It is a stone-like compound that results from combining coarse and fine aggregates, such as gravel, crushed
stone and sand, with water, various admixtures and cement. Ready-mixed concrete can be manufactured in thousands of
variations which in each instance may reflect a specific design use. Manufacturers of ready-mixed concrete generally
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maintain less than one day’s requirements of raw materials and must coordinate their daily material purchases with the
time-sensitive delivery requirements of their customers.
Ready-mixed concrete begins a chemical reaction when mixed and begins to harden and generally becomes difficult to
place within 90 minutes after mixing. This characteristic generally limits the market for a permanently installed plant to an
area within a 25-mile radius of its location. Concrete manufacturers produce ready-mixed concrete in batches at their plants
and use mixer and other trucks to distribute and place it at the job sites of their customers. These manufacturers generally
do not provide paving or other finishing services construction contractors or subcontractors typically perform.
Concrete manufacturers generally obtain contracts through local sales and marketing efforts they direct at general
contractors, developers and home builders. As a result, local relationships are very important.
On the basis of information the National Ready-Mixed Concrete Association has provided to us, we estimate that, in
addition to vertically integrated manufacturers of cement and ready-mixed concrete, more than 3,500 independent concrete
producers currently operate a total of approximately 5,300 plants in the United States. Larger markets generally have
numerous producers competing for business on the basis of price, timing of delivery and reputation for quality and service.
We believe, on the basis of available market information, that the typical ready-mixed concrete company is family-owned
and has limited access to capital, limited financial and technical expertise and limited exit strategies for its owners. Given
these operating constraints, we believe many ready-mixed concrete companies are finding it difficult to both grow their
businesses and compete effectively against larger, more cost-efficient and technically capable competitors. We believe
these characteristics in our highly fragmented industry present growth opportunities for a company with a national strategy,
focused acquisition program and access to capital.
Barriers to the start-up of a new ready-mixed concrete manufacturing operation historically have been low. In recent
years, however, public concerns about dust, process water runoff, noise and heavy mixer and other truck traffic associated
with the operation of ready-mixed concrete plants and their general appearance have made obtaining the permits and
licenses required for new plants more difficult. Delays in the regulatory process, coupled with the substantial capital
investment start-up operations entail, have raised the barriers to entry for those operations.
Significant Factors Impacting the Market for Ready-Mixed Concrete
Annual usage of ready-mixed concrete in the United States remains at record levels. We believe three significant
factors have contributed to expansion of the market for ready-mixed concrete in particular:
the increased level of industry-wide promotional and marketing activities;
the development of new and innovative uses for ready-mixed concrete; and
the enactment of the federal legislation commonly called TEA-21.
Industry-wide Promotional and Marketing Activities. We believe industry participants have only in recent years
focused on and benefited from promotional activities to increase the industry’s share of street and highway and residential
construction expenditures. Many of these promotional efforts resulted from an industry-wide initiative called RMC 2000, a
program established in 1993 under the leadership of our chief executive officer, Eugene P. Martineau. The National Ready
Mixed Concrete Association, the industry’s largest trade organization, has adopted this program. Its principal goals have
been to (1) promote ready-mixed concrete as a building and paving material and (2) improve the overall image of the
ready-mixed concrete industry. We believe RMC 2000 has been a catalyst for increased investment in the promotion of
concrete.
During 2001, Mr. Martineau participated in a campaign to raise funds for the RMC Research Foundation, a nonprofit
organization of which he is a member of the Board of Trustees. The RMC Research Foundation is dedicated to continuous
research and enhancing the educational opportunities of the ready-mixed concrete industry. Through March 15, 2002, the
RMC Research Foundation had received pledges totaling over $13 million.
Development of New and Innovative Ready-mixed Concrete Products. Ready-mixed concrete has many attributes
that make it a highly versatile construction material. In recent years, industry participants have developed various product
innovations, including:
concrete housing;
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pre-cast modular paving stones;
pre-stressed concrete railroad ties to replace wood ties;
continuous-slab rail-support systems for rapid transit and heavy-traffic intricate rail lines; and
concrete bridges, tunnels and other structures for rapid transit systems.
Other examples of successful innovations that have opened new markets for ready-mixed concrete include:
highway median barriers;
highway sound barriers;
paved shoulders to replace less permanent and increasingly costly asphalt shoulders;
parking lots providing a long-lasting and aesthetically pleasing urban environment; and
colored pavements to mark entrance and exit ramps and lanes of expressways.
Impact of TEA-21. The Federal Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century, commonly called TEA-21, is the
largest public works funding bill in the history of the United States. It became effective in June 1998 and provides a $218
billion budget for federal highway, transit and safety spending for the six-year period from 1998 through 2003. This
represents a 43% increase over the funding levels similar federal funding programs authorized for the 1992-1997 period.
Although road and highway construction and paving accounted for only 12% of our 2001 sales, we believe we should
benefit from the impact we expect TEA-21 will have on the overall demand for ready-mixed concrete in the United States.
Our Business Strategy
Our objective is to continue expanding the geographic scope of our operations and become the leading value-added
provider of ready-mixed concrete and related products and services in each of our markets. We plan to achieve this
objective by (1) continuing to make acquisitions and (2) continuing to implement our national operating strategy aimed at
increasing revenue growth and market share, achieving cost efficiencies and enhancing profitability.
Growth Through Acquisitions. The significant costs and regulatory requirements involved in building new plants
make acquisitions an important element of our growth strategy. Our acquisition program targets opportunities for (1)
expansion in our existing markets and (2) entering new geographic markets in the United States.
Expanding in Existing Markets. We seek to continue acquiring other well-established companies operating in
our existing markets in order to expand our market penetration. We have acquired operating companies in
Northern California, Michigan, North Texas, Memphis/Northern Mississippi, Northern New Jersey/Southern
New York, Knoxville and the Washington, D.C. area following our initial entry into these markets. By expanding
in existing markets through acquisitions, we expect to continue realizing various operating synergies, including:
increased market coverage;
improved utilization and range of mixer trucks because of access to additional plants;
customer cross-selling opportunities; and
reduced operating and overhead costs.
Entering New Geographic Markets. We seek to continue entering new geographic markets that have a balanced
mix of residential, commercial, industrial and public sector concrete consumption and have demonstrated adequate
sustainable demand and prospects for growth. In each new market we enter, we target for acquisition one or more
leading local or regional companies that can serve as platform businesses into which we can consolidate other
operations. Important criteria for these acquisition candidates include historically successful operating results,
established customer relationships and superior operational management personnel, whom we generally will seek
to retain. Since our formation in May 1999 and through March 15, 2002, we have entered into new geographic
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markets in San Diego, North Texas/Southwest Oklahoma, Memphis/Northern Mississippi, Knoxville, Phoenix,
Delaware and Michigan.
Implementation of National Operating Strategy. We designed our national operating strategy (1) to increase
revenues and market share through improved marketing and sales initiatives and enhanced operations and (2) to achieve
cost efficiencies.
Improving Marketing and Sales Initiatives and Enhancing Operations. Our basic operating strategy
emphasizes the sale of value-added product to customers who are more focused on reducing their installed, or inplace, concrete costs than on the price per cubic yard of the ready-mixed concrete they purchase. Key elements of
our service-oriented strategy include:
providing corporate-level marketing and sales expertise;
establishing and implementing company-wide quality control improvements;
providing technical services expertise to optimize mix designs and develop innovative new products;
continuing to develop and implement training programs that emphasize successful marketing, sales and
training techniques and the sale of high-margin concrete mix designs; and
investing in computer and communications technology at each of our locations to improve communications,
purchasing, accounting, dispatch, truck tracking, delivery efficiency, reliability of equipmentand customer
service.
Achieving Cost Efficiencies. We strive over time to reduce the total operating expenses of the businesses we
acquire by eliminating or consolidating some of the functions each business performed separately prior to its
acquisition. In addition, we believe that, as we continue to increase in size on both a local market and national
level, we should experience reduced costs as a percentage of net sales compared to those of the individual
businesses we acquire in such areas as:
materials procurement;
purchases of mixer trucks and other equipment, spare parts and tools;
vehicle and equipment maintenance;
providing technical services expertise to optimize mix designs and achieve raw materials cost savings;
employee benefit plans; and
insurance and other risk management programs.
Products and Services
Ready-Mixed Concrete. Our ready-mixed concrete products consist of proportioned mixes we prepare and deliver in
unhardened plastic states for placement and shaping into their designed forms. Selecting the optimum mix for a job entails
determining not only the ingredients that will produce the desired permeability, strength, appearance and other properties
of the concrete after it has hardened and cured, but also the ingredients necessary to achieve a workable consistency
considering the weather and other conditions at the job site. We believe we can achieve product differentiation for the
mixes we offer because of the variety of mixes we can produce, our volume production capacity and our scheduling,
delivery and placement reliability. We also believe we distinguish ourselves with our value-added service approach that
emphasizes reducing our customers’ overall construction costs by lowering the installed, or in-place, cost of concrete and
the time required for construction.
From a contractor’s perspective, the in-place cost of concrete includes both the amount paid to the ready-mixed
concrete manufacturer and the internal costs associated with the labor and equipment the contractor provides. A
contractor’s unit cost of concrete is often only a small component of the total in-place cost that takes into account all the
labor and equipment costs required to place and finish the ready-mixed concrete, including the cost of additional labor and
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time lost as a result of substandard products or delivery delays not covered by warranty or insurance. By carefully
designing proper mixes and using advances in mixing technology, we can assist our customers in reducing the amount of
reinforcing steel and labor they will require in various applications.
We provide a variety of services in connection with our sale of ready-mixed concrete which can help reduce our
customers’ in-place cost of concrete. These services include:
production of new formulations and alternative product recommendations that reduce labor and materials costs;
quality control, through automated production and laboratory testing, that ensures consistent results and minimizes
the need to correct completed work; and
automated scheduling and tracking systems that ensure timely delivery and reduce the downtime incurred by the
customer’s placing and finishing crews.
We produce ready-mixed concrete by combining the desired type of cement, sand, gravel and crushed stone with
water and typically one or more admixtures. These admixtures, such as chemicals, minerals and fibers, determine the
usefulness of the product for particular applications.
We use a variety of chemical admixtures to achieve one or more of five basic purposes:
relieve internal pressure and increase resistance to cracking in subfreezing weather;
retard the hardening process to make concrete more workable in hot weather;
strengthen concrete by reducing its water content;
accelerate the hardening process and reduce the time required for curing; and
facilitate the placement of concrete having a low water content.
We frequently use various mineral admixtures as supplementary cementing materials to alter the permeability,
strength and other properties of concrete. These materials include fly ash, ground granulated blast-furnace slag and silica
fume.
We also use fibers, such as steel, glass and synthetic and carbon filaments, as an additive in various formulations of
concrete. Fibers help to control shrinkage cracking, thus reducing permeability and improving abrasion resistance. In many
applications, fibers replace welded steel wire and reinforcing bars. Relative to the other components of ready-mixed
concrete, these additives generate comparatively high margins.
Our ready-mixed concrete operations comprised 86% of our 2001 revenues.
Pre-Cast Concrete. We produce pre-cast concrete products at five of our Northern California plants, at one of our
New Jersey plants, at our San Diego, California plant and at our Phoenix, Arizona plant. Our pre-cast concrete products
consist of ready-mixed concrete we produce and then pour into molds at our plant sites. These operations produce a wide
variety of specialized finished products, including specialty engineered structures, custom signage, manholes, catch basins,
highway barriers and curb inlets. After the concrete sets, we strip the molds from the products and ship the finished product
to our customers. Because these products are not perishable, pre-cast concrete plants can serve a much larger market than
ready-mixed concrete plants.
Our pre-cast operations comprised 10% of our 2001 revenues.
Building Materials (Including Concrete Masonry). Our building materials operations supply various materials,
products and tools contractors use in the concrete construction industry. These materials include rebar, wire mesh, color
additives, curing compounds, grouts, wooden forms, hard hats, rubber boots, gloves, trowels, lime slurry used to stabilize
foundations and numerous other items. We also produce concrete masonry at plants in Michigan, Delaware and New
Jersey. Our building materials operations are generally located near our ready-mixed concrete operations.
Our building materials operations comprised 4% of our 2001 revenues.
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Aggregates. We produce crushed stone aggregates from our granite quarry site located in Hamburg, New Jersey.
We sell these aggregates for use in commercial, residential and public works projects primarily in Northern New Jersey and
Orange County, New York. Annual production at this site is approximately one million tons of aggregates, and we
estimate the quarry has approximately 46 million tons of remaining mineral reserves. We acquired this quarry in early
2002 to serve its growing market and to provide a stable supply of crushed stone aggregates to our existing ready-mixed
concrete operations in the Northern New Jersey market. We intend to explore additional opportunities to integrate
aggregates businesses into our existing operations.
Operations
The businesses we have acquired have made substantial capital investments in equipment, systems and personnel at
their respective plants to facilitate continuous multi-customer deliveries of highly perishable products. In any given market,
we may maintain a number of plants whose production we centrally coordinate to meet customer production requirements.
We must be able to adapt constantly to continually changing delivery schedules.
Our ready-mixed concrete plants consist of permanent and portable facilities that produce ready-mixed concrete in wet
or dry batches. Our fixed-plant facilities produce ready-mixed concrete that we transport to job sites by mixer trucks. Our
on-site mobile plant operations deploy our nine mobile-plant facilities to produce ready-mixed concrete at the job site that
we direct into place using a series of conveyor belts or a mixer truck. Several factors govern the choice of plant type,
including:
capital availability;
production consistency requirements;
daily production capacity requirements; and
job-site location.
A wet batch plant generally costs more, but yields greater consistency in the concrete produced and has greater daily
production capacity, than a dry batch plant. We believe that a wet batch plant having an hourly capacity of 250 cubic yards
currently would cost approximately $1.5 million, while a dry batch plant having the same capacity currently would cost
approximately $0.7 million. At March 15, 2002, we operated 13 wet batch plants and 72 dry batch plants.
The market primarily will drive our future plant decisions. The relevant market factors include:
the expected production demand for the plant;
the expected types of projects the plant will service; and
the desired location of the plant.
Generally, plants intended primarily to serve high-volume, commercial or public works projects will be wet batch
plants, while plants intended primarily to serve low-volume, residential construction projects will be dry batch plants. From
time to time, we also may use portable plants, which include both wet batch and dry batch facilities, to service large, longterm jobs and jobs in remote locations.
The batch operator in a dry batch plant simultaneously loads the dry components of stone, sand and cement with water
and admixtures in a mixer truck that begins the mixing process during loading and completes that process while driving to
the job site. In a wet batch plant, the batch operator blends the dry components and water in a plant mixer from which he
loads the already mixed concrete into the mixer truck, which leaves for the job site promptly after loading.
Mixer trucks slowly rotate their loads on route to job sites in order to maintain product consistency. A mixer truck
typically has a load capacity of nine cubic yards, or approximately 18 tons, and a useful life of 12 years. Depending on the
type of batch plant from which the mixer trucks generally are loaded, some components of the mixer trucks will require
refurbishment after three to nine years. A new truck of this size currently costs approximately $125,000. At March 15,
2002, we operated a fleet of approximately 960 mixer trucks.
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In our manufacture and delivery of ready-mixed concrete, we emphasize quality control, pre-job planning, customer
service and coordination of supplies and delivery. We often obtain purchase orders for ready-mixed concrete months in
advance of actual delivery to a job site. A typical order contains various specifications the contractor requires the concrete
to meet. After receiving the specifications for a particular job, we use computer modeling, industry information and
information from previous similar jobs to formulate a variety of mixtures of cement, aggregates, water and admixtures
which meet or exceed the contractor’s specifications. We perform testing to determine which mix design is most
appropriate to meet the required specifications. The test results enable us to select the mixture that has the lowest cost and
meets or exceeds the job specifications. The testing center creates and maintains a project file that details the mixture we
will use when we produce the concrete for the job. For quality control purposes, the testing center also is responsible for
maintaining batch samples of concrete we have delivered to a job site.
We use computer modeling to prepare bids for particular jobs based on the size of the job, location, desired margin,
cost of raw materials and the design mixture identified in our testing process. If the job is large enough, we obtain quotes
from our suppliers as to the cost of raw materials we use in preparing the bid. Once we obtain a quotation from our
suppliers, the price of the raw materials for the specified job is informally established. Several months may elapse from the
time a contractor has accepted our bid until actual delivery of the ready-mixed concrete begins. During this time, we
maintain regular communication with the contractor concerning the status of the job and any changes in the job’s
specifications in order to coordinate the multi-sourced purchases of cement and other materials we will need to fill the job
order and meet the contractor’s delivery requirements. We confirm that our customers are ready to take delivery of
manufactured product throughout the placement process. On any given day, a particular plant may have production orders
for dozens of customers at various locations throughout its area of operation. To fill an order:
the customer service office coordinates the timing and delivery of the concrete to the job site;
a load operator supervises and coordinates the receipt of the necessary raw materials and operates the hopper that
dispenses those materials into the appropriate storage bins;
a batch operator, using a computerized batch panel, prepares the specified mixture from the order and oversees the
loading of the mixer truck with either dry ingredients and water in a dry batch plant or the already-mixed concrete
in a wet batch plant; and
the driver of the mixer truck delivers the load to the job site, discharges the load and, after washing the truck,
departs at the direction of the dispatch office.
The central dispatch system tracks the status of each mixer truck as to whether a particular truck is:
loading concrete;
in route to a particular job site;
on the job site;
discharging concrete;
being washed; or
in route to a particular plant.
The system is updated continuously via signals received from the individual truck operators as to their status. In this
manner, the dispatcher can determine the optimal routing and timing of subsequent deliveries by each mixer truck and
monitor the performance of each driver.
A plant manager oversees the operation of each plant. Our employees also include:
maintenance personnel who perform routine maintenance work throughout our plants;
a full-time staff of mechanics who perform substantially all the maintenance and repair work on our vehicles;
testing center staff who prepare mixtures for particular job specifications and maintain quality control;
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various clerical personnel who perform administrative tasks; and
sales personnel who are responsible for identifying potential customers and maintaining existing customer
relationships.
We generally operate on a single shift with some overtime operation during the construction season. On occasion, however,
we may have projects that require deliveries around the clock.
Cement and Raw Materials
We obtain most of the materials necessary to manufacture ready-mixed concrete at each of our facilities on a daily
basis. These raw materials include cement, which is a manufactured product, stone, gravel and sand. Each plant typically
maintains an inventory level of these materials sufficient to satisfy its operating needs for one day or less. Cement
represents the highest cost material used in manufacturing a cubic yard of ready-mixed concrete, while the combined cost
of the stone, gravel and sand used is slightly less than the cement cost. In each of our markets, we purchase each of these
materials from several suppliers.
Sales and Marketing
General contractors typically select their suppliers of ready-mixed concrete. In large, complex projects, an engineering
firm or division within a state transportation or public works department may influence the purchasing decision,
particularly if the concrete has complicated design specifications. In those projects and in government-funded projects
generally, the general contractor or project engineer usually awards supply orders on the basis of either direct negotiation
or competitive bidding. We believe the purchasing decision in many cases ultimately is relationship-based. Our marketing
efforts target general contractors, design engineers and architects whose focus extends beyond the price of ready-mixed
concrete to product quality and consistency and reducing the in-place cost of concrete.
Customers
Of our 2001 sales, we made approximately 51% to commercial and industrial construction contractors, approximately
31% to residential construction contractors, approximately 12% to street and highway construction contractors and
approximately 6% to other public works and infrastructure contractors. In 2001, no single customer or project accounted
for more than 4% of our total sales.
We rely heavily on repeat customers. Our management and dedicated sales personnel are responsible for developing
and maintaining successful long-term relationships with key customers. We believe that by expanding our operations into
more geographic markets, we will be in a better position to market to and service large nationwide and regional contractors.
Training and Safety
Our future success will depend, in part, on the extent to which we can attract, retain and motivate qualified employees.
We believe that our ability to do so will depend on the quality of our recruiting, training, compensation and benefits, the
opportunities we afford for advancement and our safety record. Historically, we have supported and funded continuing
education programs for our employees. We intend to continue and expand these programs. We require all field employees
to attend periodic safety training meetings and all drivers to participate in training seminars followed by certification
testing. The responsibilities of our national safety director include managing and executing a unified, company-wide safety
program.
Competition
The ready-mixed concrete industry is highly competitive. Our competitive position in a market depends largely on the
location and operating costs of our ready-mixed concrete plants and prevailing prices in that market. Price is the primary
competitive factor among suppliers for small or simple jobs, principally in residential construction, while timeliness of
delivery and consistency of quality and service as well as price are the principal competitive factors among suppliers for
large or complex jobs. Our competitors range from small, owner-operated private companies to subsidiaries or operating
units of large, vertically integrated cement manufacturing and concrete products companies. Competitors having lower
operating costs than we do or having the financial resources to enable them to accept lower margins than we do have a
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competitive advantage over us for jobs that are particularly price-sensitive. Competitors having greater financial resources
to build plants in new areas or pay for acquisitions also have competitive advantages over us.
Employees
At March 15, 2002, we had approximately 414 salaried employees, including executive officers, management
personnel, sales personnel, technical personnel, administrative staff and clerical personnel, and approximately 1,695 hourly
personnel generally employed on an as-needed basis, including truck drivers. The number of employees fluctuates
depending on the number and size of projects ongoing at any particular time, which may be impacted by variations in
weather conditions throughout the year.
At March 15, 2002, approximately 940 of our employees were represented by labor unions having collective
bargaining agreements with us. Generally, these agreements have multi-year terms and expire on a staggered basis. Under
these agreements, we pay specified wages to covered employees, observe designated workplace rules and make payments
to multi-employer pension plans and employee benefit trusts rather than administering the funds on behalf of these
employees.
None of the businesses we have acquired has experienced any strikes or significant work stoppages in the past five
years. We believe our relationships with our employees and union representatives are satisfactory.
Facilities and Equipment
At March 15, 2002, we operated a fleet of approximately 960 owned and leased mixer trucks and 550 other vehicles.
Our own mechanics service most of the fleet. We believe these vehicles generally are well maintained and adequate for
our operations. The average age of the mixer trucks is approximately 6.5 years.
The table below summarizes the operations at our facilities at March 15, 2002. We believe that these facilities are
sufficient for our immediate needs. The ready-mixed volumes in the table represent the pro forma 2001 volumes produced
by each location.

Location

Northern California ................................
Atlantic Region ......................................
North Texas/Southwest Oklahoma ........
Michigan ................................................
Tennessee/Northern Mississippi ............
Southern California/Arizona ..................

Fixed

20
27
16
11
11
—
85

Ready-Mixed
Portable
Total

—
6
2
—
1
—
9

20
33
18
11
12
—
94

Pre-Cast

5
1
—
—
—
2
8

Block

Aggregates

—
2
—
1
—
—
3

—
1
—
—
—
—
1

Ready-Mixed
Volume
(in thousands
of cubic yards)

2,108
1,557
787
647
469
—
5,568

Governmental Regulation and Environmental Matters
A wide range of federal, state and local laws apply to our operations, including such matters as:
land usage;
street and highway usage;
noise levels; and
health, safety and environmental matters.
In many instances, we must have certificates, permits or licenses to conduct our business. Failure to maintain required
certificates, permits or licenses or to comply with applicable laws could result in substantial fines or possible revocation of
our authority to conduct some of our operations. Delays in obtaining approvals for the transfer or grant of certificates,
permits or licenses, or failures to obtain new certificates, permits or licenses, could impede the implementation of our
acquisition program.
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Environmental laws that impact our operations include those relating to air quality, solid waste management and water
quality. Environmental laws are complex and subject to frequent change. These laws impose strict liability in some cases
without regard to negligence or fault. Sanctions for noncompliance may include revocation of permits, corrective action
orders, administrative or civil penalties and criminal prosecution. Some environmental laws provide for joint and several
strict liability for remediation of spills and releases of hazardous substances. In addition, businesses may be subject to
claims alleging personal injury or property damage as a result of alleged exposure to hazardous substances, as well as
damage to natural resources. These laws also may expose us to liability for the conduct of or conditions caused by others,
or for acts that complied with all applicable laws when performed. We have conducted Phase I investigations to assess
environmental conditions on substantially all the real properties we own or lease and have engaged independent
environmental consulting firms in that connection. We have not identified any environmental concerns we believe are
likely to have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations, but you have no
assurance material liabilities will not occur. You also have no assurance our compliance with amended, new or more
stringent laws, stricter interpretations of existing laws or the future discovery of environmental conditions will not require
additional, material expenditures. OSHA regulations establish requirements our training programs must meet.
We have all material permits and licenses we need to conduct our operations and are in substantial compliance with
applicable regulatory requirements relating to our operations. Our capital expenditures relating to environmental matters
were not material in 2001. We currently do not anticipate any material adverse effect on our business or financial position
as a result of our future compliance with existing environmental laws controlling the discharge of materials into the
environment.
Product Warranties
Our operations involve providing ready-mixed and other concrete formulations that must meet building code or other
regulatory requirements and contractual specifications for durability, stress-level capacity, weight-bearing capacity and
other characteristics. If we fail or are unable to provide product meeting these requirements and specifications, material
claims may arise against us and our reputation could be damaged.
Insurance
Our employees perform a significant portion of their work moving and storing large quantities of heavy raw materials,
driving large mixer trucks in heavy traffic conditions or placing concrete at construction sites or in other areas that may be
hazardous. These operating hazards can cause personal injury and loss of life, damage to or destruction of property and
equipment and environmental damage. We maintain insurance coverage in amounts and against the risks we believe accord
with industry practice, but this insurance may not be adequate to cover all losses or liabilities we may incur in our
operations, and we may be unable to maintain insurance of the types or at levels we deem necessary or adequate or at rates
we consider reasonable.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
We are including the following discussion to inform our existing and potential security holders generally of some of
the risks and uncertainties that can affect our company and to take advantage of the ‘‘safe harbor’’ protection for forwardlooking statements that applicable federal securities law affords.
From time to time, our management or persons acting on our behalf make forward-looking statements to inform
existing and potential security holders about our company. These statements may include projections and estimates
concerning the timing of pending acquisitions and the success of our national operating strategy, revenues, income and
capital spending. Forward-looking statements generally use words such as ‘‘estimate,’’ ‘‘project,’’ ‘‘predict,’’ ‘‘believe,’’
‘‘expect,’’ ‘‘anticipate,’’ ‘‘plan,’’ ‘‘goal’’ or other words that convey the uncertainty of future events or outcomes. In
addition, sometimes we will specifically describe a statement as being a forward-looking statement and refer to this
cautionary statement.
In addition, various statements this report contains, including those that express a belief, expectation or intention, as
well as those that are not statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements. Those forward-looking statements
appear in Items 1 and 2—‘‘Business and Properties’’ and Item 3—‘‘Legal Proceedings’’ in Part I of this report and in Item
7—‘‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations’’ and in the notes to our
consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of Part II of this report and elsewhere in this report. These forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date of this report, we disclaim any obligation to update these statements and we caution
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you not to rely unduly on them. We have based these forward-looking statements on our current expectations and
assumptions about future events. While our management considers these expectations and assumptions to be reasonable,
they are inherently subject to significant business, economic, competitive, regulatory and other risks, contingencies and
uncertainties, most of which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond our control. These risks, contingencies
and uncertainties relate to, among other matters, the following:
our acquisition and national operating strategies;
our ability to integrate the businesses we acquire;
our ability to obtain the capital necessary to finance our growth strategies;
the availability of qualified personnel;
the trends we anticipate in the ready-mixed concrete industry and in our business;
the level of activity in the construction industry generally and in our local markets for ready-mixed concrete;
the highly competitive nature of our business;
the cost of capital, including the interest expense associated with our outstanding borrowings, which is tied in part
to market interest rates;
changes in, or our ability to comply with, governmental regulations, including those relating to the environment;
our labor relations and those of our suppliers of cement and aggregates;
the level of funding allocated by the United States Government for federal highway, transit and safety spending;
power outages and other unexpected events that delay or adversely affect our ability to deliver concrete according
to our customers’ requirements;
our ability to control costs and maintain quality; and
our exposure to warranty claims from developers and other customers.
We believe the items we have outlined above are important factors that could cause our actual results to differ
materially from those expressed in a forward-looking statement made in this report or elsewhere by us or on our behalf. We
have discussed most of these factors in more detail elsewhere in this report. These factors are not necessarily all the
important factors that could affect us. Unpredictable or unknown factors we have not discussed in this report could also
have material adverse effects on actual results of matters that are the subject of our forward-looking statements. We do not
intend to update our description of important factors each time a potential important factor arises. We advise our existing
and potential security holders that they should (1) be aware that important factors to which we do not refer above could
affect the accuracy of our forward-looking statements and (2) use caution and common sense when considering our
forward-looking statements.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Bay-Crete Transportation & Materials, LLC alleges in a lawsuit it filed on July 11, 2000 in California Superior Court
in San Mateo County, against our subsidiary, Central, and us that it possesses beneficiary rights under a 1983 contract to
purchase annually up to 200,000 cubic yards of ready-mixed concrete from Central until March 30, 2082. Under that
contract, the purchase price would consist of Central's direct materials costs and an overhead fee. Bay-Crete alleges that
we breached that contract by refusing to acknowledge Bay-Crete's rights as a beneficiary of that contract. It is seeking
damages of $500 million of lost profits spread over the next 81 years. Central and we each filed an answer and crosscomplaint in August 2000 which seeks declaratory relief for a determination that Bay-Crete is not entitled to use the
contract. In addition, the cross-complaints seek damages for improper conduct by Bay-Crete, the general manager of BayCrete and a member of Bay-Crete for making demands under the contract in violation of an order of the United States
Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of California, San Francisco Division. A predecessor to Central previously
11

prevailed in the defense of a similar action brought by the general manager of Bay-Crete under a related agreement, and
Central and we believe we have meritorious defenses to Bay-Crete's claim and intend to vigorously defend this suit.
In September 2001, we entered into a settlement agreement relating to a complaint that Del Webb California Corp.
filed on June 29, 2001 in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Sacramento against one of our
subsidiaries, Central, and two other companies. The complaint related to concrete produced by Central and delivered for
use in a large, single-family home tract-construction project in northern California. The complaint (1) alleged various
causes of action relating to concrete that Central manufactured using a batch mix that did not meet Del Webb’s
specifications and (2) sought relief including damages of at least $7 million. Under the settlement agreement entered into
among the plaintiff and its parent company, Central, U.S. Concrete and one of the other defendants in the case, Central
agreed to accept a back charge in the amount of $608,000 from Del Webb, effectively eliminating a receivable from Del
Webb in that amount, and pay an additional $2.2 million to Del Webb. In connection with the settlement, Central, U.S.
Concrete and the other settling defendant also entered into a two-year supply agreement with Del Webb to continue to
provide concrete for use in Del Webb’s project in northern California at an agreed-to selling price adjustment from the
price charged by Central (which we believe approximates the discount we would provide for a contract with similar
volume). In December 2001, the Superior Court determined that the parties entered into the settlement in good faith and
the matter was concluded. We recorded the $608,000 and $ 2.2 million charges as selling, general and administrative
expenses in the second and third quarters, respectively, of 2001.
From time to time, and currently, we are subject to various other claims and litigation brought by employees,
customers and other third parties for, among other matters, personal injuries, property damages, product defects and delay
damages that have, or allegedly have, resulted from the conduct of our operations.
We believe that the resolution of all litigation currently pending or threatened against us or any of our subsidiaries
(including the dispute with Bay-Crete we describe above) will not have a material adverse effect on our business or
financial condition; however, because of the inherent uncertainty of litigation, we cannot assure you that the resolution of
any particular claim or proceeding to which we are a party will not have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations for the fiscal period in which that resolution occurs. We expect in the future we will from time to time be a
party to litigation or administrative proceedings which arise in the normal course of our business.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
No matter was submitted to a vote of our security holders during the fourth quarter of 2001.

12

PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Our common stock began trading on The Nasdaq Stock Market in May 1999 under the symbol ‘‘RMIX.’’ As of
March 15, 2002, 26.7 million shares of our common stock were outstanding, held by approximately 880 stockholders of
record. The number of record holders does not necessarily bear any relationship to the number of beneficial owners of our
common stock.
The following table sets forth the range of high and low bid prices for our common stock on The Nasdaq Stock
Market for the periods indicated:
2001
High

First Quarter .............................................................................. $ 9.13

2000
Low

High

Low

$ 6.13

$ 7.88

$ 6.00

Second Quarter .........................................................................

9.25

7.17

8.13

6.00

Third Quarter.............................................................................

8.51

6.65

8.19

6.00

Fourth Quarter...........................................................................

7.45

5.73

7.31

5.69

The last reported bid price for our common stock on The Nasdaq Stock Market on March 15, 2002 was $7.03 per
share.
We have not paid or declared any dividends since our formation and currently intend to retain earnings to fund our
working capital. Any future dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors after taking into account various
factors it deems relevant, including our financial condition and performance, cash needs, income tax consequences and the
restrictions Delaware and other applicable laws and our credit facilities then impose. Our credit facility prohibits the
payment of cash dividends on our common stock. See ‘‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources’’ in Item 7 of this report and Note 7 of our Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this report.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
Between October 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001, we issued 742,448 shares of common stock as part of the
consideration we paid to two former owners of a business we acquired in that period. We issued those shares without
registration under the Securities Act in reliance on the exemption Section 4(2) of the Securities Act provides for
transactions not involving any public offering.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
We acquired seven businesses in 2001, six businesses in 2000 and 14 in 1999 (including our initial six acquisitions),
all of which we have accounted for under the purchase method of accounting (see Note 3 “Business Combinations” in Item
8). Our financial statements present Central Concrete Supply Co., Inc., one of our initial six acquisitions, as the acquirer of
the other 26 businesses and U.S. Concrete. The following historical financial information is of Central prior to June 1, 1999
and of U.S. Concrete and its consolidated subsidiaries after that date. The historical financial information for Central as of
December 31, 1998 and 1997, and for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, derives from the audited financial
statements of Central. See the historical financial statements and related notes this document contains.
2001

Statement of Operations Information:
Sales .................................................................................. $493,591
Cost of goods sold............................................................. 396,769
Gross profit ................................................................... 96,822
Selling, general and administrative expenses.................... 44,933
2,124
Stock compensation charge...............................................
Depreciation and amortization .......................................... 13,828
Income from operations ................................................ 35,937
Interest expense, net.......................................................... 19,386
652
Other income, net .............................................................
Income before income tax provision............................. 17,203
7,658
Income tax provision (benefit) ..........................................
Net income .................................................................... $ 9,545

2001

Balance Sheet Information:
Working capital............................................................. $ 46,941
Total assets .................................................................... 430,836
Long-term debt, including current maturities................ 163,775
Total stockholders’ equity............................................. 188,315

Year Ended December 31
2000
1999
1998
(in thousands)

$394,636
314,297
80,339
27,741
—
11,212
41,386
14,095
1,319
28,610
11,750
$ 16,860

2000

$ 43,185
357,490
157,134
150,555

$167,912
135,195
32,717
9,491
2,880
3,453
16,893
1,708
663
15,848
7,658
$ 8,190

$66,499
53,974
12,525
4,712
—
930
6,883
165
36
6,754
100
$ 6,654

$53,631
43,794
9,837
4,265
—
1,330
4,242
226
26
4,042
(457)
$ 4,499

1998

1997

$ 7,431
26,640
3,530
15,154

$ 4,899
19,837
2,660
10,731

December 31
1999
(in thousands)

$ 14,578
212,734
57,375
110,793

1997

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Statements we make in the following discussion which express a belief, expectation or intention, as well as those that
are not historical fact, are forward-looking statements that are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual
results, performance or achievements, or industry results, could differ materially from those we express in the following
discussion as a result of a variety of factors, including the risks and uncertainties we have referred to under the heading
“Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” following Items 1 and 2 of Part I of this report and
under the heading “Factors That May Affect Our Future Operating Results” below.
Overview
We derive substantially all our revenues from the sale of ready-mixed concrete, other concrete products and related
construction materials to the construction industry in the United States. We serve substantially all segments of the
construction industry, and our customers include contractors for commercial, industrial, residential and public works and
infrastructure construction. We typically sell ready-mixed concrete under daily purchase orders that require us to formulate,
prepare and deliver ready-mixed concrete to the job sites of our customers. We recognize our sales from these orders when
we deliver the ordered products.
Our cost of goods sold consists principally of the costs we incur in obtaining the cement, aggregates and admixtures
we combine to produce ready-mixed concrete and other concrete products in various formulations. We obtain substantially
all these materials from third parties and generally have only one day’s supply at each of our concrete plants. Our cost of
goods sold also includes labor costs and the operating, maintenance and rental expenses we incur in operating our concrete
plants and mixer trucks and other vehicles.
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Our selling expenses include the salary and incentive compensation we pay our sales force, the salaries and incentive
compensation of our sales managers and travel, entertainment and other promotional expenses. Our general and
administrative expenses include the salaries and benefits we pay to our executive officers, the senior managers of our local
and regional operations, plant managers and administrative staff. These expenses also include office rent and utilities,
communications expenses and professional fees.
We purchased seven operating businesses in 2001, six operating businesses in 2000 and 14 operating businesses in
1999, all of which we have accounted for in accordance with the purchase method of accounting. Our financial statements
present Central Concrete Supply Co., Inc., one of our initial six acquisitions, as the acquirer of the other businesses and
U.S. Concrete. These financial statements are those of Central prior to June 1, 1999 and of U.S. Concrete and its
consolidated subsidiaries after that date.
Factors That May Affect Our Future Operating Results
Reflecting the levels of construction activity, the demand for ready-mixed concrete is highly seasonal. We believe that
this demand may be as much as three times greater in a prime summer month than in a slow winter month and that the sixmonth period of May through October is the peak demand period. Consequently, we expect that our sales generally will be
materially lower in the first and fourth calendar quarters. Because we incur fixed costs, such as wages, rent, depreciation
and other selling, general and administrative expenses, throughout the year, we expect our gross profit margins will be
disproportionately lower than our sales in these quarters. Even during traditional peak periods, sustained periods of
inclement weather and other extreme weather conditions can slow or delay construction and thus slow or delay our sales.
You should not rely on (1) quarterly comparisons of our revenues and operating results as indicators of our future
performance or (2) the results of any quarterly period during a year as an indicator of results you may expect for that entire
year.
Demand for ready-mixed concrete and other concrete products depends on the level of activity in the construction
industry. That industry is cyclical in nature, and the general condition of the economy and a variety of other factors beyond
our control affect its level of activity. These factors include, among others:
the availability of funds for public or infrastructure construction;
commercial and residential vacancy levels;
changes in interest rates;
the availability of short- and long-term financing;
inflation;
consumer spending habits; and
employment levels.
The construction industry can exhibit substantial variations in activity across the country as a result of these factors
impacting regional and local economies differently.
Markets for ready-mixed concrete generally are local. Our results of operations are susceptible to swings in the level
of construction activity which may occur in our markets.
Ready-mixed concrete is highly price-sensitive. Our prices are subject to changes in response to relatively minor
fluctuations in supply and demand, general economic conditions and market conditions, all of which are beyond our
control. Because of the fixed-cost nature of our business, our overall profitability is sensitive to minor variations in sales
volumes and small shifts in the balance between supply and demand.
Competitive conditions in our industry also may affect our future operating results.
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As we acquire additional businesses in the future, we will include the operating results of those businesses in our
consolidated operating results from their respective acquisition dates. Consequently, the magnitude and timing of our
future acquisitions will affect our operating results.
We may incur material costs and losses as a result of claims that our products do not meet regulatory requirements or
contractual specifications.
Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets.” Under this new standard, which we discuss under “New Accounting Pronouncements”
below, the new requirements for assessing whether goodwill assets have been impaired involve analyses of fair value. This
information, and its use in assessing goodwill, will entail some degree of subjective assessments.
Results of Operations
The following table sets forth for us selected historical statement of operations information and that information as a
percentage of sales for the years indicated. These financial statements are those of Central prior to June 1, 1999 and of U.S.
Concrete and its consolidated subsidiaries after that date. Except as we note below, our acquisitions in 2001 primarily
account for the changes in 2001 from 2000, and our acquisitions in 2000 primarily account for the changes in 2000 from
1999.
2001
Sales ........................................................................... $ 493,591
396,769
Cost of goods sold......................................................
96,822
Gross profit ........................................................
44,933
Selling, general and administrative expenses.............
2,124
Special compensation charge .....................................
13,828
Depreciation and amortization ...................................
35,937
Income from operations .....................................
19,386
Interest expense, net...................................................
652
Other income, net.......................................................
17,203
Income before income tax provision..................
7,658
Income tax provision..................................................
Net income ......................................................... $ 9,545

Year Ended December 31
2000
1999
(dollars in thousands)
100.0% $394,636
100.0% $ 167,912
80.4
314,297
79.6
135,195
19.6
80,339
20.4
32,717
9.1
27,741
7.0
9,491
0.4
—
—
2,880
2.8
11,212
2.9
3,453
7.3
41,386
10.5
16,893
3.9
14,095
3.6
1,708
0.1
1,319
0.4
663
3.5
28,610
7.3
15,848
1.6
11,750
3.0
7,658
1.9% $ 16,860
4.3% $ 8,190

100.0%
80.5
19.5
5.7
1.7
2.1
10.0
1.0
0.4
9.4
4.5
4.9%

2001 Compared to 2000
Sales. Sales increased $99.0 million, or 25.1%, from $394.6 million in 2000 to $493.6 million in 2001.
Gross profit. Gross profit increased $16.5 million, or 20.5%, from $80.3 million in 2000 to $96.8 million in 2001. Gross
margins decreased from 20.4% in 2000 to 19.6% in 2001, primarily because of decreases in sales volume in several of our
primary markets resulting principally from a slowdown in construction activity attributable to general and local economic
conditions and weather conditions in some of our markets.
Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $17.2 million, or
62.0%, from $27.7 million in 2000 to $44.9 million in 2001. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses
as a percentage of sales is primarily attributable to management additions in some of our markets and a pretax charge of
$2.2 million we recorded in the third quarter of 2001 to settle the Del Webb litigation and a $608,000 pretax charge in the
second quarter of 2001 to reserve a portion of our accounts receivable related to the Del Webb project. Final effectiveness
and payment of the settlement occurred in December 2001.
Special compensation charge. We granted additional compensation to members of our management team and some of
our key employees in recognition of the overall contribution made by those employees to our various 2001 capital-raising
initiatives. This one-time award is in addition to our recurring annual incentive compensation program.
Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense increased $2.6 million, or 23.3%, from $11.2
million in 2000 to $13.8 million in 2001. This increase includes amortization of the goodwill attributable to our acquisition
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activity. At December 31, 2001, the annualized amount of this noncash expense was $5.8 million. For additional
information, see the discussion below of new accounting standards relating to goodwill under “New Accounting
Pronouncements.”
Interest expense, net. Interest expense, net, increased $5.3 million from $14.1 million in 2000 to $19.4 million in 2001.
This increase was attributable to borrowings we made to pay the cash portion of the purchase prices for our acquisitions
and the issuance of $95 million of 12.00% senior subordinated notes in November 2000. At December 31, 2001, we had
outstanding borrowings totaling $163.8 million, at a weighted average interest cost of 9.1% per annum. Based on this
weighted average interest rate, the impact of the senior subordinated notes on interest expense is an increase of $6.6
million, or $0.15 per share, on an annualized after-tax basis.
Other income, net. Other income, net, decreased $667,000, or 50.6%, from $1.3 million in 2000 to $0.6 million in 2001.
This decrease is attributable to gains realized in 2000 on the sale of a customer contract, a gain from the involuntary
conversion of property and other items of income that were not replicated in 2001.
Income tax provision. We provided for income taxes of $7.7 million in 2001, a decrease of $4.1 million from our
provision in 2000. The decrease in income taxes is principally the result of lower taxable income our operations generated
during 2001. Additionally, the effective tax rate increased from 41.1% to 44.5% due to the effect of the non-deductible
portion of our goodwill amortization on our lower taxable income.
2000 Compared to 1999
Sales. Sales increased $226.7 million, or 135.0%, from $167.9 million in 1999 to $394.6 million in 2000.
Gross profit. Gross profit increased $47.6 million, or 145.6%, from $32.7 million in 1999 to $80.3 million in 2000. Gross
margins increased from 19.5% in 1999 to 20.4% in 2000, primarily because of improved pricing terms we negotiated with
key materials suppliers in our major ready-mixed concrete markets.
Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $18.3 million, or
192.3%, from $9.5 million in 1999 to $27.7 million in 2000. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses
as a percentage of sales is attributable to additions to the corporate overhead infrastructure to accommodate our growth
strategy and management additions in certain of our markets.
Special compensation charge. The 1999 stock compensation charge represents a noncash charge for the 400,000 shares of
common stock we issued in December 1998 and March 1999 to management and nonemployee directors at a nominal cost.
The amount of this charge reflected a fair value of $7.20 per share, which represented a 10% discount from the initial
offering price to the public of $8.00 per share in our IPO.
Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense increased $7.8 million, or 224.7%, from $3.5
million in 1999 to $11.2 million in 2000. This increase includes amortization of the goodwill attributable to our acquisition
activity. At December 31, 2000, the annualized amount of this noncash expense was $4.9 million. For additional
information, see the discussion below of new accounting standards relating to goodwill under “New Accounting
Pronouncements.”
Interest expense, net. Interest expense, net, increased $12.4 million from $1.7 million in 1999 to $14.1 million in 2000.
This increase was attributable principally to borrowings we made to pay the cash portion of the purchase prices for our
acquisitions. At December 31, 2000, we had outstanding borrowings totaling $157.1 million, at a weighted average
interest cost of 10.7% per annum.
Other income, net. Other income, net, increased $656,000, or 98.9%, from $663,000 in 1999 to $1.3 million in 2000.
This increase is attributable to the sale of a customer contract, a gain from the involuntary conversion of property and other
items of income.
Income tax provision. We provided for income taxes of $11.8 million in 2000, an increase of $4.1 million from our
provision in 1999. The increase is principally attributable to an overall increase in taxable earnings for 2000 resulting from
our operating activities. In addition, in the first five months of 1999, Central operated as an S Corporation and thus made
no provision for income taxes during that period. The increase in our overall income tax provision is partially offset by a
decrease in our effective income tax rate from 48.3% in 1999 to 41.1% in 2000. The higher rate in 1999 primarily resulted
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from the income tax expense we recognized as a result of the conversion of Central from an S Corporation to a C
Corporation and a nondeductible stock compensation charge we recognized during that year.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Free Cash Flow
Free cash flow is defined as cash provided by operating activities less net capital expenditures (that is, purchases of
property, plant and equipment less proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment). If free cash flow is positive,
it represents funds available to invest in acquisitions or to reduce outstanding debt or equity. If free cash flow is negative,
it represents a requirement to utilize additional debt or equity capital resources.
Our historical free cash flow is presented as follows (in thousands):
2001

Net cash provided by operating activities .......................................................................
Less: purchases of property, plant and equipment .........................................................
Add: proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment...................................
Free cash flow .........................................................................................................

Year Ended December 31
2000
1999

$ 44,874
(10,859)
2,214
$ 36,229

$ 9,583
(8,205)
2,156
$ 3,534

$ 9,046
(7,547)
1,031
$ 2,530

The increase in free cash flow from 2000 to 2001 was primarily attributable to improvements in working capital
changes. These working capital change improvements resulted from a more disciplined focus on various aspects of cash
management, including accelerated customer billings and collections at many of our operating subsidiaries and more
effective management of vendor payables. The increase in free cash flow from 1999 to 2000 was primarily attributable to
higher net earnings and noncash charges, partially offset by unfavorable working capital changes.
Acquisitions
The following table summarizes the amount we paid for acquisitions during the indicated periods (in thousands):
2001

Year Ended December 31
2000
1999

Cash consideration .................................................................................................. $ 49,303
Less: Cash received from acquired companies .......................................................
(2,174)
Cash paid, net of cash acquired ...............................................................................
47,129
Fair value of common stock issued ..........................................................................
12,375
Direct acquisition costs incurred ..............................................................................
2,613
Total purchase costs incurred, net of cash acquired ......................................... $ 62,117

$ 98,918 $ 78,565
(3,961)
(10,070)
94,957
68,495
22,357
67,050
3,261
8,406
$120,575 $ 143,951

Capital Resources
On July 18, 2001, we issued in a public offering 1.8 million shares of our common stock at a price to the public of
$8.00 per share. We used the net proceeds of $13.6 million to repay borrowings under our credit facility.
On August 31, 2001, we amended and restated our secured revolving credit facility. The terms of the facility are
substantially unchanged, except that we extended the maturity of the facility from May 2002 to May 2004 and reduced the
size of the facility from $200 million to $188 million. We had $68.6 million of outstanding borrowings under our credit
facility at December 31, 2001. Our borrowing capacity under the facility varies from time to time depending on our
satisfaction of several financial tests. We may use the facility for the following purposes:
•
•
•
•

financing acquisitions;
funding the internal expansion of our operations;
working capital; and
general corporate purposes.

Our subsidiaries have guaranteed the repayment of all amounts owing under the facility, and we secured the facility
with the capital stock and assets of our subsidiaries. The facility:
•
•

requires the consent of the lenders for all acquisitions;
prohibits the payment of cash dividends on our common stock;
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from the income tax expense we recognized as a result of the conversion of Central from an S Corporation to a C
Corporation and a nondeductible stock compensation charge we recognized during that year.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Free Cash Flow
Free cash flow is defined as cash provided by operating activities less net capital expenditures (that is, purchases of
property, plant and equipment less proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment). If free cash flow is positive,
it represents funds available to invest in acquisitions or to reduce outstanding debt or equity. If free cash flow is negative,
it represents a requirement to utilize additional debt or equity capital resources.
Our historical free cash flow is presented as follows (in thousands):
2001

Net cash provided by operating activities .......................................................................
Less: purchases of property, plant and equipment .........................................................
Add: proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment...................................
Free cash flow .........................................................................................................

Year Ended December 31
2000
1999

$ 44,874
(10,859)
2,214
$ 36,229

$ 9,583
(8,205)
2,156
$ 3,534

$ 9,046
(7,547)
1,031
$ 2,530

The increase in free cash flow from 2000 to 2001 was primarily attributable to improvements in working capital
changes. These working capital change improvements resulted from a more disciplined focus on various aspects of cash
management, including accelerated customer billings and collections at many of our operating subsidiaries and more
effective management of vendor payables. The increase in free cash flow from 1999 to 2000 was primarily attributable to
higher net earnings and noncash charges, partially offset by unfavorable working capital changes.
Acquisitions
The following table summarizes the amount we paid for acquisitions during the indicated periods (in thousands):
2001

Year Ended December 31
2000
1999

Cash consideration .................................................................................................. $ 49,303
Less: Cash received from acquired companies .......................................................
(2,174)
Cash paid, net of cash acquired ...............................................................................
47,129
Fair value of common stock issued ..........................................................................
12,375
Direct acquisition costs incurred ..............................................................................
2,613
Total purchase costs incurred, net of cash acquired ......................................... $ 62,117

$ 98,918 $ 78,565
(3,961)
(10,070)
94,957
68,495
22,357
67,050
3,261
8,406
$120,575 $ 143,951

Capital Resources
On July 18, 2001, we issued in a public offering 1.8 million shares of our common stock at a price to the public of
$8.00 per share. We used the net proceeds of $13.6 million to repay borrowings under our credit facility.
On August 31, 2001, we amended and restated our secured revolving credit facility. The terms of the facility are
substantially unchanged, except that we extended the maturity of the facility from May 2002 to May 2004 and reduced the
size of the facility from $200 million to $188 million. We had $68.6 million of outstanding borrowings under our credit
facility at December 31, 2001. Our borrowing capacity under the facility varies from time to time depending on our
satisfaction of several financial tests. We may use the facility for the following purposes:
•
•
•
•

financing acquisitions;
funding the internal expansion of our operations;
working capital; and
general corporate purposes.

Our subsidiaries have guaranteed the repayment of all amounts owing under the facility, and we secured the facility
with the capital stock and assets of our subsidiaries. The facility:
•
•

requires the consent of the lenders for all acquisitions;
prohibits the payment of cash dividends on our common stock;
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•
•

limits our ability to incur additional indebtedness; and
requires us to comply with financial covenants.

Our failure to comply with these covenants and restrictions would constitute an event of default under the facility.
At December 31, 2001, we had $119.4 million of remaining capacity under this facility, of which we could borrow
$16.1 million based on our leverage ratio at that date. Our ability to borrow additional amounts would increase to the
extent that we use the facility to fund the acquisition of additional businesses with positive cash flow.
On November 10, 2000, we issued and sold to institutional investors in a private placement $95 million aggregate
principal amount of our 12.00% senior subordinated notes due November 10, 2010 for $95 million in cash. The terms of
these notes require us to repay them in equal annual installments of approximately $13.6 million on November 10 in each
of the years 2004 through 2010. We used the net proceeds from our sale of the notes to reduce amounts outstanding under
our credit facility.
We anticipate that our consolidated cash flow from our operations will exceed our normal working capital needs, debt
service requirements and the amount of our planned capital expenditures, excluding acquisitions, for at least the next 12
months.
The continuation of our growth strategy will require substantial capital. We currently intend to finance future
acquisitions through issuances of our equity or debt securities, including convertible securities, and borrowings under our
credit facility. Using debt to complete acquisitions could substantially limit our operational and financial flexibility. The
extent to which we will be able or willing to use our common stock to make acquisitions will depend on its market value
from time to time and the willingness of potential sellers to accept it as full or partial payment. Using our common stock or
convertible securities for this purpose may result in dilution to our then existing stockholders. To the extent we are unable
to use our common stock to make future acquisitions, our ability to grow will be limited by the extent to which we are able
to raise capital for this purpose, as well as to expand existing operations, through debt or additional equity financings. If
we are unable to obtain additional capital on acceptable terms, we may be required to reduce the scope of our presently
anticipated expansion, which could materially adversely affect our business and the value of our common stock.
We cannot accurately predict the timing, size and success of our acquisition efforts or our associated potential capital
commitments.
Other Commitments
As is common in our industry, we have entered into certain off-balance sheet arrangements in the ordinary course of
business that result in risks our balance sheets do not directly reflect. Our significant off-balance sheet transactions are
liabilities associated with noncancelable operating leases and letter of credit obligations.
We enter into noncancelable operating leases for many of our facility, vehicle and equipment needs. These leases
allow us to conserve cash by paying a monthly lease rental fee for use of the facilities, vehicles and equipment rather than
purchasing them. At the end of the lease, we have no further obligation to the lessor. We may decide to cancel or
terminate a lease before the end of its term, in which event we typically would be liable to the lessor for the remaining lease
payments under the term of the lease.
We did not have any letters of credit outstanding under our facility at December 31, 2001. In March 2002, we issued a
$50,000 letter of credit to a municipality in New Jersey in connection with our obligation to perform reclamation services
on the closure of an aggregates quarry operation that we purchased in January 2002. The cost of this reclamation is being
accrued over the life of the quarry, which is currently estimated to be in excess of 40 years.
Our future contractual obligations are as follows (in thousands):
2002

Debt obligations ........................................... $
77
Operating lease obligations .......................... 10,509

2003

$

61
7,956

2004

$82,209
6,419

2005

2006

$13,571 $13,571
4,453
3,962

Thereafter

$54,286
9,038

Total

$163,775
42,337

In January 2002, we entered into an underwriting agreement that allows us to issue a limited number of shares of our
common stock through an underwriter over a two-year period. To the extent that we do not raise a minimum amount
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through the issuance of equity under this agreement over its two-year term, we would be required to pay the underwriter up
to $100,000 in stand-by fees.
Related-Party Transactions
We enter into transactions in the normal course of business with related parties. These transactions consist principally
of operating leases under which we lease facilities from former owners of our acquired businesses or their affiliates and
include transactions with some of our officers and directors or their affiliates. See note 10 (Related-Party Transactions) to
our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 to this report for a description of these transactions.
Critical Accounting Policies
In response to the SEC’s Release No. 33-8040, “Cautionary Advice Regarding Disclosure About Critical Accounting
Policies,” we have identified our critical accounting policies based on the significance of the accounting policy to our
overall financial statement presentation, as well as the complexity of the accounting policy and its use of estimates and
subjective assessments. We have concluded that our critical accounting policies are the use of estimates in the recording of
allowance for doubtful accounts, realization of goodwill, accruals for self-insurance, accruals for income tax provision and
the valuation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment. See note 2 (Significant Accounting Policies) to our
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 to this report for a complete discussion of these accounting policies.
New Accounting Pronouncements
In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
SFAS No. 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations initiated after June
30, 2001. SFAS No. 141 also specifies criteria for recording intangible assets other than goodwill in connection with
business combinations. SFAS No. 142 requires companies to assess goodwill assets for impairment each year, and more
frequently if circumstances suggest an impairment may have occurred. SFAS No. 142 also introduces a more stringent
framework for assessing goodwill impairment than the approach previously required. In addition, SFAS No. 142
discontinues the regular charge, or amortization, of goodwill assets against income.
SFAS No. 141 was effective immediately. SFAS No. 142 became effective for us beginning January 1, 2002. We
will show any impairment loss we recognize in accordance with SFAS No. 142 as the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle in our income statement. Under this treatment, our income statement would show after-tax results of
operations both with and without the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle recognizing an impairment.
We are currently reviewing these new accounting standards. Under the prior standards, we recognized a non-cash
charge of approximately $1.4 million per quarter in our consolidated income statement to amortize our goodwill assets over
40-year lives. We ended this amortization on January 1, 2002, under the new standards.
On the basis of a preliminary review of the new standards and currently available information, we believe we will
record a non-cash, after-tax goodwill impairment charge, reflected as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle, of between $20 million and $25 million in the first quarter of 2002.
We have specifically provided for the possibility of a non-cash charge in the terms of our credit facility and
accordingly expect no impact from such an impairment charge on our compliance with that facility.
In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No. 143
covers all legally enforceable obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets. SFAS No. 143
requires recording the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period incurred. SFAS 143 is
effective for us beginning January 1, 2003. Upon adoption of SFAS 143, we would be required to use a cumulative effect
approach to recognize transition amounts for any existing retirement obligation liabilities, asset retirement costs and
accumulated depreciation. We have yet to determine the impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 143 will have on our
consolidated financial statements.
In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.”
This statement supersedes SFAS No. 121 “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to Be Disposed Of,” and the accounting and reporting provisions of APB 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations –
Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring
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Events and Transactions.” The new standard went into effect beginning January 1, 2002, and we are currently reviewing
and evaluating the effects this standard will have on our reported financial condition, results of operations and accounting
policies and practices.
In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”
This standard requires entities to recognize all derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in
other contracts, as assets or liabilities in their balance sheets and measure them at fair value. It also requires that changes in
the derivatives’ fair value be recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. We
adopted this standard effective January 1, 2001. Because we did not engage in holding or trading derivative instruments,
this standard has had no impact through 2001.
Inflation
As a result of the relatively low levels of inflation during the past three years, inflation did not significantly affect our
results of operations in any of those years.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Borrowings under our revolving credit facility expose us to certain market risks. Outstanding borrowings under our
credit facility were $68.6 million at December 31, 2001. A change of one percent in the interest rate would cause a pretax
change in interest expense of approximately $686,000 or $0.01 per diluted share, on an annual after-tax basis. We did not
enter into our credit facility for trading purposes. The credit facility carries interest at a pre-agreed percentage point spread
from either the prime interest rate, or a one, two, three or six month Eurodollar interest rate.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To U.S. Concrete, Inc.:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of U.S. Concrete, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of U.S. Concrete, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the
consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
Houston, Texas
February 26, 2002
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U.S. CONCRETE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share amounts)
December 31
2001
2000

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.......................................................................................................
Trade accounts receivable, net ...............................................................................................
Inventories .............................................................................................................................
Deferred income taxes.............................................................................................................
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ..............................................................................
Total current assets .................................................................................................
Property, plant and equipment, net ................................................................................................
Goodwill, net .................................................................................................................................
Other assets .....................................................................................................................................
Total assets ..............................................................................................................

$

7,127
72,326
16,499
1,851
7,444
105,247
100,309
219,868
5,412
$ 430,836

$

711
62,641
9,494
1,653
5,106
79,605
82,993
188,921
5,971
$ 357,490

$

$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt.......................................................................................
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ................................................................................
Total current liabilities ............................................................................................
Long-term debt, net of current maturities .......................................................................................
Deferred income taxes.....................................................................................................................
Total liabilities.........................................................................................................

77
58,229
58,306
163,698
20,517
242,521

107
36,313
36,420
157,027
13,488
206,935

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and
outstanding ..........................................................................................................................
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 60,000,000 shares authorized; 26,711,094 and
22,452,036 shares issued and outstanding in 2001 and 2000, respectively ........................
Additional paid-in capital........................................................................................................
Retained earnings ....................................................................................................................
Total stockholders’ equity.......................................................................................
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ................................................................

—

—

27
155,380
32,908
188,315
$ 430,836

22
127,170
23,363
150,555
$ 357,490

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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U.S. CONCRETE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
2001

Sales ...........................................................................................................................
Cost of goods sold......................................................................................................
Gross profit ........................................................................................................
Selling, general and administrative expenses.............................................................
Special compensation charge .....................................................................................
Depreciation and amortization ...................................................................................
Income from operations .....................................................................................
Interest expense, net...................................................................................................
Other income, net.......................................................................................................
Income before income tax provision .................................................................
Income tax provision .................................................................................................
Net income .........................................................................................................
Earnings per share:
Basic...................................................................................................................
Diluted................................................................................................................
Number of shares used in calculating earnings per share:
Basic...................................................................................................................
Diluted................................................................................................................

Year Ended December 31
2000
1999

$ 493,591
396,769
96,822
44,933
2,124
13,828
35,937
19,386
652
17,203
7,658
$ 9,545

$ 394,636
314,297
80,339
27,741
—
11,212
41,386
14,095
1,319
28,610
11,750
$ 16,860

$ 167,912
135,195
32,717
9,491
2,880
3,453
16,893
1,708
663
15,848
7,658
$ 8,190

$
$

$
$

$
$

0.39
0.39
24,551
24,621

0.78
0.78
21,573
21,592

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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0.70
0.70
11,770
11,783

U.S. CONCRETE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands)

Common Stock
Shares

BALANCE, December 31, 1998 ..................................
Initial public offering, net of offering costs ..........
Acquisitions of founding companies.....................
Acquisitions of purchased companies ...................
Distributions to stockholders.................................
Stock compensation charge...................................
Net income ............................................................
BALANCE, December 31, 1999 ..................................
Acquisitions of purchased companies ...................
Stock issued under employee stock
purchase plan.....................................................
Net income ............................................................
BALANCE, December 31, 2000 ..................................
Public offering, net of offering costs.....................
Acquisitions of purchased companies ...................
Stock issued under employee stock
purchase plan.....................................................
Stock option exercises...........................................
Stock issued to board member ..............................
Stock issued in connection with special
compensation charge .........................................
Net income ............................................................
BALANCE, December 31, 2001 ..................................

3,120
4,370
8,319
2,430
—
400
—
18,639
3,710

Amount

$

621
27,668
57,904
15,198
2,880

—

—

19
2

104,271
22,355

8,190
6,503
—

103
—
22,452
1,820
2,076

1
—
22
2
3

544
127,170
13,600
12,372

—
16,860
23,363
—
—

545
16,860
150,555
13,602
12,375

226
17
12

—
—
—

1,242
125
95

—
—
—

1,242
125
95

108
—
26,711

—
—

776

—
9,545
$ 32,908

776
9,545
$ 188,315

—

—

—

$ 155,380

$ 14,530
—
(6,064)
—
(10,153)

Stockholders’
Equity

—
—
—
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$

Retained
Earnings

15,154
27,672
51,850
15,200
(10,153)
2,880
8,190
110,793
22,357

$

3
4
10
2

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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$

U.S. CONCRETE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)
Year Ended December 31
2001
2000
1999

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income .............................................................................................................
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization ........................................................................
Debt issuance cost amortization ......................................................................
Net loss (gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment................................
Deferred income tax provision .......................................................................
Provision for doubtful accounts ......................................................................
Stock compensation ........................................................................................
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding effects of acquisitions:
Receivables .....................................................................................................
Prepaid expenses and other current assets.......................................................
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ........................................................
Net cash provided by operating activities ...............................................
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ...........................................................
Payments for acquisitions, net of cash received of $2,174, $3,961 and $10,070....
Payment of direct costs in connection with acquisitions ........................................
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment.....................................
Net cash used in investing activities........................................................
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from borrowings ......................................................................................
Repayments of borrowings .....................................................................................
Proceeds from issuances of common stock.............................................................
Cash paid related to common stock issuance costs .................................................
Debt issuance costs .................................................................................................
Distributions to stockholders...................................................................................
Net cash provided by financing activities ...............................................
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .................
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD .........................
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD .......................................
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest ..............................................................................................
Cash paid for income taxes .....................................................................................
NONCASH FINANCING ACTIVITY:
Distribution of cash surrender value of life insurance to stockholder.....................

$ 9,545

$ 16,860

13,828
1,719
77
4,881
2,507
871

11,212
1,099
(435)
3,011
220
—

3,453
123
(218)
762
118
2,880

3,953
(1,801)
9,294
44,874

(4,194)
(2,623)
(15,567)
9,583

(5,372)
69
(959)
9,046

(10,859)
(47,129)
(2,613)
2,214
(58,387)

(8,205)
(7,547)
(94,957) (68,495)
(3,261)
(8,406)
2,156
1,031
(104,267) (83,417)

6,620
(113)
15,200
(180)
(1,598)
—
19,929
6,416
711
$ 7,127

192,900
(93,141)
545
(242)
(5,294)
—
94,768
84
627
$
711

57,266
(3,607)
32,512
(4,373)
(860)
(10,153)
70,785
(3,586)
4,213
$ 627

$ 17,865
$
336

$ 12,377
$ 12,340

$ 1,412
$ 4,973

$

$

$ 1,155

—

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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$ 8,190

—

U.S. CONCRETE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
U.S. Concrete, Inc., a Delaware corporation, was founded in July 1997 to create a leading provider of ready-mixed
concrete and related products and services to the construction industry in major markets in the United States. It did not
conduct any operations prior to May 1999. On May 28, 1999, it completed the initial public offering of its common stock
and concurrently acquired six operating businesses. From the date of its IPO through December 31, 2001, U.S. Concrete
acquired 21 additional operating businesses. Its financial statements reflect the operations of the businesses it acquired after
May 31, 1999 from their respective dates of acquisition.
U.S. Concrete’s future success depends on a number of factors, which include integrating operations successfully,
identifying and acquiring satisfactory acquisition candidates, obtaining acquisition financing, managing growth, attracting
and retaining qualified management and employees, complying with government regulations and other regulatory
requirements or contract specifications and addressing risks associated with competition, seasonality and quarterly
fluctuations.
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements consist of the accounts of U.S. Concrete and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany account balances and transactions have been eliminated.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
U.S. Concrete records as cash equivalents all highly liquid investments having maturities of three months or less at the
date of purchase.
Inventories
Inventories consist primarily of raw materials, pre-cast products, building materials and repair parts that U.S. Concrete
holds for use or sale in the ordinary course of business. It uses the first-in, first-out method to value inventories at the lower
of cost or market. For each of the three years ended December 31, 2001, management believes U.S. Concrete incurred no
material impairments in the carrying value of its inventories.
Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses primarily include amounts U.S. Concrete has paid for insurance, licenses, property taxes, rent and
maintenance contracts. It expenses or amortizes all prepaid amounts as used or over the period of benefit, as applicable.
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
U.S. Concrete states property, plant and equipment at cost, unless impaired, and uses the straight-line method to
compute depreciation of these assets over their estimated useful lives. It capitalizes leasehold improvements on properties it
holds under operating leases and amortizes them over the lesser of their estimated useful lives or the applicable lease term.
It states equipment it holds under capital leases at the net present value of the future minimum lease payments at the
inception of the applicable leases and amortizes that equipment over the lesser of the life of the lease or the estimated
useful life of the asset.
U.S. Concrete expenses maintenance and repair costs when incurred and capitalizes and depreciates expenditures for
major renewals and betterments that extend the useful lives of its existing assets. When U.S. Concrete retires or disposes of
property, plant or equipment, it removes the related cost and accumulated depreciation from its accounts and reflects any
resulting gain or loss in its statements of operations.
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Goodwill
Goodwill represents the amount by which the total purchase price U.S. Concrete has paid to acquire businesses
accounted for as purchases exceeds the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired. It amortizes goodwill on a straightline basis over 40 years. As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, accumulated amortization was $10.8 million and $5.4
million, respectively. For additional information, see the discussion of new accounting standards related to goodwill below
in this note under New Accounting Pronouncements.
Debt Issue Costs
Other long-term assets include debt issue costs related to U.S. Concrete’s credit facility and subordinated notes (see
Note 7 for discussion). U.S. Concrete amortizes these costs as interest expense over the scheduled maturity period of the
debt. As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, accumulated amortization of debt issue costs was $2.9 million and $1.2 million,
respectively.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
U.S. Concrete provides an allowance for accounts receivable it believes it may not collect in full. A provision for bad
debt expense recorded to selling, general and administrative expenses increases the allowance. Accounts receivable which
are written off U.S. Concrete’s books decrease the allowance. The amount of bad debt expense recorded each period and
the resulting adequacy of the allowance at the end of each period are determined using a combination of historical results
reported by the concrete industry, U.S. Concrete’s historical loss experience, customer-by-customer analyses of U.S.
Concrete’s accounts receivable balances each period and subjective assessments of U.S. Concrete’s future bad debt
exposure.
Sales and Expenses
U.S. Concrete derives its sales primarily from the production and delivery of ready-mixed concrete and related
products and materials. It recognizes sales when products are delivered. Cost of goods sold consists primarily of product
costs and operating expenses. Operating expenses consist primarily of wages, benefits and other expenses attributable to
plant operations, repairs and maintenance and delivery costs. Selling expenses consist primarily of sales commissions,
salaries of sales managers, travel and entertainment expenses and trade show expenses. General and administrative
expenses consist primarily of executive and administrative compensation and benefits, office rent, utilities, communication
and technology expenses and professional fees.
Insurance Programs
U.S. Concrete maintains third-party insurance coverage in amounts and against the risks it believes are reasonable.
Under certain components of its insurance program, U.S. Concrete shares the risk of loss with its insurance underwriters by
maintaining high deductibles subject to aggregate annual loss limitations. U.S. Concrete funds these deductibles and
records an expense for expected losses under the programs. The expected losses are determined using a combination of
U.S. Concrete’s historical loss experience and subjective assessments of U.S. Concrete’s future loss exposure.
Income Taxes
U.S. Concrete uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, it records deferred income
taxes based on temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and uses enacted
tax rates and laws that will be in effect when it recovers those assets or settles those liabilities, as the case may be, to
measure those taxes.
U.S. Concrete files a consolidated federal income tax return, which includes the operations of all acquired businesses
for periods subsequent to their respective acquisition dates. The acquired businesses file ‘‘short period’’ federal income tax
returns for the period from their last fiscal year through their respective acquisition dates.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The financial instruments of U.S. Concrete consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade
payables and long-term debt. Management considers the book values of these items to be representative of their respective
fair values.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the use
of estimates and assumptions by management in determining the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and assumptions that U.S.
Concrete considers significant in the preparation of its financial statements include those related to its allowance for
doubtful accounts, realization of goodwill, accruals for self-insurance, accruals for income tax provision and the valuation
and useful lives of property, plant and equipment.
Valuation of Long-Lived Assets
U.S. Concrete reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If the expected future undiscounted cash flows of an asset it intends to hold
for use is less than the carrying amount of the asset, it will recognize a loss equal to the difference between the fair value
(calculated by discounting the estimated future operating cash flows) and the carrying amount of the asset. If it intends to
dispose of an asset that is impaired, it will recognize a loss equal to the difference between the estimated fair value of the
asset, less estimated costs to sell, and its carrying amount.
Reclassifications
U.S. Concrete has made various reclassifications to amounts in prior period financial statements to conform with its
current period presentation.
Earnings per Share
Since U.S. Concrete’s consolidated financial statements present Central, one of its initial acquisitions, as the acquirer
as of June 1, 1999 of U.S. Concrete and its other acquired businesses, U.S. Concrete uses the shares of its common stock
beneficially owned by the former owners of Central in the calculation of its earnings per share for all periods prior to that
date.
The following table reconciles the numerator and denominator of the basic and diluted earnings per share for each of
the periods shown (in thousands, except per share amounts). Basic earnings represent earnings per weighted average
outstanding share, while diluted earnings represent those earnings as diluted by potentially dilutive securities such as
outstanding options.
2001

Numerator:
Net income ............................................................................................................
Denominator:
Weighted average common shares outstanding-basic...........................................
Effect of dilutive stock options .............................................................................
Weighted average common shares outstanding-diluted........................................
Earnings per share:
Basic......................................................................................................................
Diluted...................................................................................................................

Year Ended December 31
2000
1999

$ 9,545

$ 16,860

$ 8,190

24,551
70
24,621

21,573
19
21,592

11,770
13
11,783

$
$

0.39
0.39

$
$

0.78
0.78

$
$

0.70
0.70

For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, options to purchase 1.9 million, 2.1 million and 1.3 million
shares of common stock, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because their
exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common stock.
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Comprehensive Income
In the first quarter of 1999, U.S. Concrete adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 130,
‘‘Reporting Comprehensive Income,’’ which requires the display of comprehensive income and its components in the
financial statements. Comprehensive income represents all changes in equity of an entity during the reporting period,
except those resulting from investments by and distributions to stockholders. For each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2001, no material differences exist between the historical consolidated net income and consolidated
comprehensive income of U.S. Concrete.
Segment Information
U.S. Concrete has adopted SFAS No. 131, ‘‘Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,’’
which establishes standards for the manner by which public enterprises are to report information about operating segments
in annual financial statements and requires the reporting of selected information about operating segments in interim
financial reports issued to stockholders. All segments that meet a threshold of 10% of revenues, reported profit or loss or
combined assets are defined as significant segments. U.S. Concrete currently operates as one segment comprised of its
ready-mixed concrete and related products. All of its operations, sales and long-lived assets are in the United States.
New Accounting Pronouncements
In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,”
and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141 requires that the purchase method of
accounting be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 141 also specifies criteria for
recording intangible assets other than goodwill in connection with business combinations. SFAS No. 142 requires
companies to assess goodwill assets for impairment each year, and more frequently if circumstances suggest an impairment
may have occurred. SFAS No. 142 also introduces a more stringent framework for assessing goodwill impairment than the
approach previously required. In addition, SFAS No. 142 discontinues the regular charge, or amortization, of goodwill
assets against income.
SFAS No. 141 was effective immediately. SFAS No. 142 became effective for U.S. Concrete beginning January 1,
2002. U.S. Concrete will show any impairment loss it recognizes in accordance with SFAS No. 142 as the cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle in its income statement. Under this treatment, its income statement would show
after-tax results of operations both with and without the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle
recognizing an impairment.
U.S. Concrete is currently reviewing these new accounting standards. Under the prior standards, it recognized a noncash charge of approximately $1.4 million per quarter in its consolidated income statement to amortize its goodwill assets
over 40-year lives. U.S. Concrete ended this amortization on January 1, 2002, under the new standards.
On the basis of a preliminary review of the new standards and currently available information, U.S. Concrete believes
it will record a non-cash, after-tax goodwill impairment charge, reflected as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle, of between $20 million and $25 million in the first quarter of 2002.
U.S. Concrete has specifically provided for the possibility of a non-cash charge in the terms of its credit facility and
accordingly expects no impact from such an impairment charge on its compliance with that facility.
In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No. 143
covers all legally enforceable obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets. SFAS No. 143
requires recording the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period incurred. SFAS 143 is
effective for U.S. Concrete beginning January 1, 2003. Upon adoption of SFAS 143, U.S. Concrete would be required to
use a cumulative effect approach to recognize transition amounts for any existing retirement obligation liabilities, asset
retirement costs and accumulated depreciation. U.S. Concrete has yet to determine the impact that the adoption of SFAS
No. 143 will have on its consolidated financial statements.
In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.”
This statement supersedes SFAS No. 121 “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to Be Disposed Of,” and the accounting and reporting provisions of Accounting Principles Board (APB) 30,
“Reporting the Results of Operations – Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary,
Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions.” The new standard went into effect beginning January 1,
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2002, and U.S. Concrete is currently reviewing and evaluating the effects this standard will have on its reported financial
condition, results of operations and accounting policies and practices.
In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”
This standard requires entities to recognize all derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in
other contracts, as assets or liabilities in their balance sheets and measure them at fair value. It also requires that changes in
the derivatives’ fair value be recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. U.S.
Concrete adopted this standard effective January 1, 2001. Because it did not engage in holding or trading derivative
instruments, this standard has had no impact through 2001.
3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
U.S. Concrete effected seven acquisitions in 2001, six in 2000 and 14 in 1999, including its initial six acquisitions at
the time of its IPO, all of which were accounted for as purchases. The accompanying balance sheet at December 31, 2001
includes the preliminary allocations of the purchase prices of the 2001 acquisitions and is subject to final adjustment. The
following tables summarize the number of acquisitions completed and aggregate consideration U.S. Concrete paid in these
transactions:
Acquisitions completed:

2001

Ready-mixed businesses ............................................................................................
Pre-cast businesses .....................................................................................................
Total .......................................................................................................................
Consideration (in thousands):

2000

5
2
7
2001

Cash ............................................................................................................................ $ 49,303
12,375
Fair value of common stock issued ............................................................................
Total ....................................................................................................................... $ 61,678

1999

5
1
6
2000

11
3
14
1999

$ 98,918 $ 78,565
22,357
67,050
$121,275 $ 145,615

The following summarized unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information adjusts the historical consolidated
financial information by assuming that all 2000 and 2001 acquisitions occurred on January 1, 2000 (in thousands, except
per share data):
Year Ended
December 31
2001
2000
(unaudited)

Revenues .................................................................................................................
Net income...............................................................................................................
Basic earnings per share ..........................................................................................
Diluted earnings per share .......................................................................................

$519,222
$ 10,082
$
0.38
$
0.38

$511,781
$ 17,770
$ 0.73
$ 0.73

Pro forma adjustments these amounts include primarily relate to:
contractual reductions in salaries, bonuses and benefits to former owners of the businesses;
elimination of legal, accounting and other professional fees incurred in connection with the acquisitions;
amortization of goodwill resulting from the acquisitions;
reduction in interest expense, net of interest expense on borrowings to fund acquisitions; and
adjustments to the federal and state income tax provision based on pro forma operating results.
The pro forma financial information does not purport to represent what the combined financial results of operations of
U.S. Concrete actually would have been if these transactions and events had in fact occurred when assumed and are not
necessarily representative of its financial results of operations for any future period.

32

In connection with the acquisitions, U.S. Concrete has determined the resulting goodwill as follows (in thousands):
2001

2000

1999

Cash consideration ............................................................................................. $
Less: cash received from acquired companies ..................................................
Cash paid, net of cash acquired ..........................................................................
Fair value of common stock issued .....................................................................
Direct acquisition costs incurred .........................................................................
Total purchase costs incurred, net of cash acquired .....................................

49,303
(2,174)
47,129
12,375
2,613
62,117

$ 98,918 $ 78,565
(3,961)
(10,070)
94,957
68,495
22,357
67,050
3,261
8,406
120,575
143,951

Fair value of assets acquired, net of cash acquired .............................................
Less: fair value of assumed liabilities ...............................................................
Fair value of net assets acquired, net of cash acquired........................................
Costs incurred in excess of net assets acquired ............................................ $

40,056
(14,257)
25,799
36,318

48,546
75,067
(15,700)
(37,699)
32,846
37,368
$ 87,729 $ 106,583

The amounts relating to the 2001 acquisitions are preliminary and subject to final adjustment.
4. SPECIAL COMPENSATION AND LITIGATION CHARGES
Special Compensation Charges
Effective April 10, 2001, U.S. Concrete granted incentive compensation to members of its management team and some
of its key employees in recognition of the overall contribution those employees made to its various 2001 capital raising
initiatives. This one-time capital raising incentive compensation award is in addition to U.S. Concrete’s recurring annual
incentive compensation program. The total incentive compensation for all recipients is summarized as follows (in
thousands):
Stock Awards
(Senior
Management)

Shares of common stock granted .................................................
Value of common stock granted ..................................................
Cash payments .............................................................................
Charge before income tax benefit .............................................
Income tax benefit ........................................................................
Charge after benefit from income taxes ....................................
Cash charge after benefit from income taxes............................

Cash Awards
(Field
Personnel)

108
$

$
$

776
631
1,407
(633)
774
(2)

Total

—
$

$
$

—
717
717
(323)
394
394

108
$

776
1,348
2,124
(956)
$ 1,168
$
392

The shares of common stock issued as incentive compensation to the stock award recipients are not subject to any
vesting requirements or transfer restrictions, other than any applicable transfer restrictions under federal or state securities
laws.
The fair market value of U.S. Concrete’s common stock on the incentive compensation grant date was $7.19 per share.
The one-time capital raising incentive compensation charge was $2.1 million on a pretax basis, $1.2 million on an after-tax
basis and $392,000 on an after-tax cash basis. U.S. Concrete recognized this charge as an expense in the second quarter of
2001.
In the second quarter of 1999, U.S. Concrete recorded a $2.9 million noncash charge for 400,000 shares of its common
stock issued in December 1998 and March 1999 to management and nonemployee directors at a nominal cost.
Litigation Charges
In September 2001, U.S. Concrete and Central entered into a settlement agreement with Del Webb relating to litigation
initiated against U.S. Concrete and others involving claims of defective concrete provided by Central for use in a large,
single-family home tract-construction project in Northern California. Under the settlement agreement, U.S. Concrete
agreed to accept a back charge in the amount of $608,000 from Del Webb and pay an additional $2.2 million to Del Webb.
U.S. Concrete recorded the $608,000 and $2.2 million charges as selling, general and administrative expenses in the second
and third quarters, respectively, of 2001. See Note 12 for additional information.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
A summary of property, plant and equipment is as follows (dollars in thousands):
Useful
Lives in
Years

Land ............................................................................................................................. —
Buildings and improvements........................................................................................ 10-40
Machinery and equipment............................................................................................ 10-30
Mixers, trucks and other vehicles................................................................................. 6-12
Furniture and fixtures................................................................................................... 3-10
Construction in progress .............................................................................................. —
Less: accumulated depreciation ...................................................................................

2001

December 31
2000

$ 15,182
11,773
40,822
53,785
1,397
3,194
126,153
(25,844)
$100,309

$ 12,657
5,395
35,880
45,496
1,075
1,010
101,513
(18,520)
$ 82,993

6. DETAIL OF CERTAIN BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS
Activity in U.S. Concrete’s allowance for doubtful accounts receivable consists of the following (in thousands):
2001

Balance, beginning of period................................................................................. $ 1,627
Additions from acquisitions...................................................................................
1,031
Provision for doubtful accounts.............................................................................
2,507
Uncollectible receivables written off, net of recoveries ........................................
(1,498)
Balance, end of period ........................................................................................... $ 3,667

December 31
2000

$

730
1,085
220
(408)
$ 1,627

1999

$

97
686
118
(171)
$ 730

Inventory consists of the following (in thousands):
December 31
2001
2000

Raw materials ............................................................................................................................... $ 5,699
Pre-cast products ..........................................................................................................................
6,530
Building materials for resale.........................................................................................................
3,157
Repair parts...................................................................................................................................
1,113
$ 16,499

$ 3,768
3,210
1,500
1,016
$ 9,494

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):
December 31
2001
2000

Accounts payable......................................................................................................................... $ 37,568
Accrued compensation and benefits ............................................................................................
6,449
Accrued interest...........................................................................................................................
1,729
Accrued income taxes..................................................................................................................
2,467
Other............................................................................................................................................
10,016
$ 58,229
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$ 25,283
3,895
1,890
—
5,245
$ 36,313

7. LONG-TERM DEBT
A summary of long-term debt is as follows (in thousands):
December 31
2001
2000

Secured revolving credit facility ........................................................................................................... $ 68,620
12.00% senior subordinated notes ........................................................................................................ 95,000
155
Other ....................................................................................................................................................
163,775
(77)
Less: current maturities .................................................................................................................
Long-term debt, net of current maturities ............................................................................................. $163,698

$ 62,000
95,000
134
157,134
(107)
$157,027

On August 31, 2001, U.S. Concrete amended and restated its secured revolving credit facility. The terms of the
facility are substantially unchanged, except that the parties extended the maturity of the facility from May 2002 to May
2004 and reduced the size of the facility from $200 million to $188 million. U.S. Concrete may use this facility for
working capital, to finance acquisitions and for other general corporate purposes. Availability under the facility is tied to
various affirmative and negative financial covenants, including leverage ratios, an asset coverage ratio, a minimum net
worth calculation, a limitation on additional indebtedness, lender consent for acquisitions and a prohibition of cash
dividends on U.S. Concrete’s common stock. Subsidiary guarantees and pledges of substantially all U.S. Concrete's fixed
assets and subsidiary capital stock secure the payment of all obligations owing under the facility. Advances bear interest at
the prime rate or LIBOR, at U.S. Concrete's option, in each case plus a margin keyed to the ratio of consolidated
indebtedness to cash flow. A commitment fee, based on the ratio of consolidated indebtedness to cash flow, is paid on any
unused borrowing capacity. At December 31, 2001, U.S. Concrete had borrowings totaling $68.6 million outstanding
under this facility at a weighted average interest cost of 5.1%. At December 31, 2001, U.S. Concrete had $119.4 million of
remaining capacity under this facility, of which it could borrow $16.1 million based on its leverage ratio at that date;
however, its ability to borrow additional amounts would increase to the extent that it uses the facility to fund the acquisition
of additional businesses with positive cash flow.
On November 10, 2000, U.S. Concrete issued and sold to institutional investors in a private placement $95 million
aggregate principal amount of its 12.00% senior subordinated notes due November 10, 2010 for $95 million in cash. The
terms of these notes require repayment in equal annual installments of approximately $13.6 million on November 10 in
each of the years 2004 through 2010. These notes are subordinated in right of payment to the credit facility and are
guaranteed by the subsidiaries of U.S. Concrete. The notes require U.S. Concrete to comply with affirmative and financial
covenants generally consistent with those required under the credit facility. U.S. Concrete used the net proceeds from the
sale of these notes to repay borrowings under the secured revolving credit facility.
Aggregate maturities of long-term debt are as follows (in thousands):
Year Ending December 31

2002 ................................................................................................................................................................. $
77
61
2003 .................................................................................................................................................................
2004 ................................................................................................................................................................. 82,209
2005 ................................................................................................................................................................. 13,571
2006 ................................................................................................................................................................. 13,571
Thereafter ....................................................................................................................................................... 54,286
$163,775
8. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Initial Public Offering
In May 1999, U.S. Concrete completed its IPO, issuing 3.8 million shares of its common stock to the public at a price
of $8.00 per share, resulting in net proceeds to U.S. Concrete of $23.5 million, after deducting offering costs. In June 1999,
it sold an additional 570,000 shares of common stock on the exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option. It realized
net proceeds from this sale of $4.2 million.
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Warrants
In connection with the IPO, U.S. Concrete issued warrants to the underwriters to purchase 200,000 shares of common
stock at an exercise price of $8.00 per share. These warrants expire in May 2002. U.S. Concrete issued warrants to
purchase an additional 100,000 shares of common stock to such parties in May 2000 at an exercise price of $8.00 per share
for advisory services performed by them in connection with an acquisition. These warrants expire in May 2003. At
December 31, 2001 and 2000, all these warrants remained outstanding.
Stock Options
U.S. Concrete’s 1999 and 2001 incentive plans enable U.S. Concrete to grant non-qualified options, restricted stock,
deferred stock, incentive stock options, stock appreciation rights and other long-term incentive awards to employees and
nonemployee directors of U.S. Concrete and nonemployee consultants and other independent contractors who provide
services to U.S. Concrete. Options granted under these plans generally vest over a four-year period and expire if not
exercised prior to the 10th anniversary following the grant date. The number of shares available for awards under these
plans was 1.8 million (including 594,000 under the 2001 plan) as of December 31, 2001 and 1.0 million as of December
31, 2000. The board of directors of U.S. Concrete may, in its discretion, grant additional awards or establish other
compensation plans.
The following table summarizes stock option activity (in thousands, except prices):
Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Options

Options outstanding at December 31, 1998 ....................................................................................
Granted ...................................................................................................................................
Exercised..................................................................................................................................
Forfeited...................................................................................................................................
Options outstanding at December 31, 1999 ....................................................................................
Granted ...................................................................................................................................
Exercised..................................................................................................................................
Forfeited...................................................................................................................................
Options outstanding at December 31, 2000 ....................................................................................
Granted ...................................................................................................................................
Exercised..................................................................................................................................
Forfeited...................................................................................................................................
Options outstanding at December 31, 2001 ....................................................................................
Options exercisable at December 31, 2001 .....................................................................................
Option exercise price range at December 31, 2001.

—
1,425
—
(32)
1,393
1,205
—
(198)
2,400
1,179
(17)
(148)
3,414
955

$ —
7.93
—
8.13
7.93
7.52
—
7.68
7.74
7.07
6.81
7.52
$ 7.53
$ 7.84

$6.13 - $8.75

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the options at December 31, 2001 was 8.1 years.
As allowed by SFAS No. 123, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,’’ U.S. Concrete accounts for stock
option awards in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25. The exercise prices of all options U.S. Concrete awarded during
2001 and 2000 were at least equal to the fair market values of the common stock on the dates of grant. As a result, under
APB No. 25, it did not recognize any compensation expense attributable to these options. Had it determined compensation
expense under the SFAS No. 123 method, its net income and earnings per share during 2001 and 2000 would have been
the following pro forma amounts (in thousands, except per share amounts):
Net income
As reported ..........................................................................................
Pro forma .............................................................................................
Diluted earnings per share
As reported ..........................................................................................
Pro forma .............................................................................................
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2001

Year Ended December 31
2000
1999

$ 9,545
$ 8,117

$16,860
$16,076

$ 8,190
$ 7,699

$ 0.39
$ 0.33

$ 0.78
$ 0.74

$ 0.70
$ 0.65

The effects of applying SFAS No. 123 in the pro forma disclosure may not be indicative of future amounts because
U.S. Concrete expects to make additional awards. For purposes of this disclosure, U.S. Concrete estimated the fair value of
each option grant on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:
2001

Expected dividend yield ..............................................................................
Expected stock price volatility.....................................................................
Risk-free interest rate...................................................................................
Expected life of options...............................................................................

Year Ended December 31
2000

0.0 %
54.2 %
5.0 %
10 years

0.0 %
48.2 %
5.0 %
10 years

1999

0.0 %
54.7 %
6.0 %
10 years

Employee Stock Purchase Plan
In May 2000, U.S. Concrete’s Board of Directors adopted, and its stockholders approved, the U.S. Concrete 2000
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”). The ESPP is intended to qualify as an “employee stock purchase plan”
under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. All U.S. Concrete personnel that are customarily employed for at
least 20 hours per week and five months per calendar year are eligible to participate in the ESPP. Under the ESPP,
employees electing to participate are granted the right to purchase shares of U.S. Concrete common stock at a price
generally equal to 85% of the lower of the fair market value of a share of U.S. Concrete common stock on the first or last
day of the offering period.
9. INCOME TAXES
U.S. Concrete’s consolidated federal and state tax returns include the results of operations of acquired businesses from
their dates of acquisition.
The amounts of consolidated federal and state income tax provisions are as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31
2001
2000
1999

Current:
Federal......................................................................................................................... $ 2,346
State.............................................................................................................................
431
2,777
Deferred:
Federal......................................................................................................................... 4,532
State.............................................................................................................................
349
4,881
$ 7,658

$ 7,617
1,122
8,739

$ 6,398
498
6,896

2,646
365
3,011
$11,750

700
62
762
$ 7,658

A reconciliation of U.S. Concrete’s effective income tax rate to the amounts calculated by applying the federal
statutory corporate tax rate of 35% is as follows (in thousands):
2001

Year Ended December 31
2000
1999

Tax at statutory rate............................................................................................................. $ 6,021
Add (deduct):
State income taxes.......................................................................................................
507
Nondeductible expenses..............................................................................................
1,068
Nondeductible compensation charge ..........................................................................
—
Income taxed to former Central owners ......................................................................
—
Deferred tax charge for S Corporation taxes...............................................................
—
Other............................................................................................................................
62
Income tax provision........................................................................................................... $ 7,658
Effective income tax rate ....................................................................................................
44.5%
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$ 10,013

$ 5,547

967
960
—
—
—
(190)
$ 11,750
41.1%

364
405
1,008
(590)
924
—
$ 7,658
48.3%

Deferred income tax provisions result from temporary differences in the recognition of expenses for financial
reporting purposes and for tax reporting purposes. U.S. Concrete presents the effects of those differences as deferred
income tax liabilities and assets, as follows (in thousands):
December 31
2001
2000

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Property and equipment, net ....................................................................................................... $ 14,149
Goodwill .....................................................................................................................................
4,206
Other ...........................................................................................................................................
2,568
Total deferred income tax liabilities....................................................................................
20,923
Deferred income tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts ................................................................................................
752
Accrued expenses........................................................................................................................
1,099
Other ...........................................................................................................................................
406
Total deferred income tax assets .........................................................................................
2,257
Net deferred income tax liabilities .............................................................................. $ 18,666

$ 10,407
1,689
1,816
13,912
433
1,220
424
2,077
$ 11,835

December 31
2001
2000

Allowance for doubtful accounts ........................................................................................................ $
752
Accrued expenses................................................................................................................................
1,099
Current portion of deferred income tax assets ............................................................................
1,851
Net deferred income tax liabilities ..............................................................................................
18,666
Long-term portion of net deferred income tax liabilities .................................................... $ 20,517

$

433
1,220
1,653
11,835
$ 13,488

Prior to their respective acquisitions, Central and other acquired businesses were S Corporations and were not subject
to federal income taxes. Effective with their acquisition they became subject to those taxes, and U.S. Concrete has recorded
an estimated deferred tax liability to provide for its estimated future income tax liability as a result of the difference
between the book and tax bases of the net assets of these corporations as of the dates of their acquisitions. These
consolidated financial statements reflect the federal and state income taxes of these corporations since their dates of
acquisition.
10. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
U.S. Concrete enters into transactions in the normal course of business with related parties. These transactions consist
principally of operating leases under which U.S. Concrete leases facilities from former owners of its acquired businesses or
their affiliates.
On completion of its acquisition of Beall Industries, Inc. and four related companies in February 2000, U.S. Concrete
entered into eight new facilities leases with their former stockholders or affiliates of those stockholders. The leases
generally provide for initial lease terms of five years, with three five-year renewal options U.S. Concrete may exercise.
U.S. Concrete must pay an aggregate of $250,800 in current annual rent during the initial terms of these leases. Robert S.
Beall, a former owner of these companies, beneficially owns more than 5% of the outstanding shares of U.S. Concrete’s
common stock.
On completion of its IPO, U.S. Concrete entered into new facilities leases, or extended existing leases, with former
stockholders or affiliates of former stockholders of Central and Eastern Concrete Materials, Inc. (formerly known as Baer
Concrete, Incorporated). Those leases generally provide for initial lease terms of 15 to 20 years, with one or more
extension options U.S. Concrete may exercise. The following summarizes the current annual rentals U.S. Concrete must
pay during the initial lease terms:
Number of
Facilities

Central................................................................................................
Eastern ...............................................................................................

2
2

Aggregate
Annual Rentals

$300,000
285,000

William T. Albanese, a former owner of Central, and Michael D. Mitschele, the former owner of Eastern, are
members of U.S. Concrete’s board of directors.
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U.S. Concrete’s related party leases are for periods generally ranging from three to 20 years. Aggregate lease
payments under these leases were approximately $2.8 million in 2001, $2.0 million in 2000, and $607,000 in 1999. The
schedule of minimum lease payments in Note 12 includes U.S. Concrete’s future commitments under these leases.
Central purchased building materials from a company owned by two trusts of which William T. Albanese and
Thomas J. Albanese are co-trustees. Central's purchases from this company totaled $310,000, $122,000 and $233,000 in
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. U.S. Concrete believes the amounts it paid for these building materials were fair and
substantially equivalent to amounts it would have paid to an unaffiliated third party. Both trusts sold their interest in this
company in early 2002.
Central sold ready-mixed concrete to a company owned by a cousin of Messrs. Albanese and Albanese. Central’s
sales to this company totaled $15.8 million, $15.4 million and $13.5 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. U.S.
Concrete believes the amounts it received for this ready-mixed concrete were fair and substantially equivalent to amounts it
would have received from an unaffiliated third party.
Beall Concrete Enterprises, Ltd., one of U.S. Concrete’s subsidiaries, purchases aggregates from time to time from a
company that Robert S. Beall has controlled since June 2001. Beall Concrete Enterprise’s purchases from this company
totaled $119,327 in 2001. U.S. Concrete believes the amount it paid for these purchases was fair and substantially
equivalent to amounts it would have paid to an unaffiliated third party.
Robert S. Beall purchased ready-mixed concrete from Beall Concrete Enterprises during 2001 in the amount of
$118,792 in connection with the development of a real estate project. U.S. Concrete believes the amounts it received for
this ready-mixed concrete were fair and substantially equivalent to amounts it would have received from an unaffiliated
third party.
U.S. Concrete provides advances to employees in the normal course of business that are repaid directly or through
deductions from payroll. During 2000, U.S. Concrete extended loans of $175,000 to Mr. Martineau, its chief executive
officer and one of its directors, and $125,000 to Mr. Harlan, its chief financial officer and one of its directors. These
amounts were outstanding under the loans at December 31, 2001. U.S. Concrete subsequently forgave these loans in 2002.
The expense related to the forgiveness of these loans was recorded by U.S. Concrete in 2001. The loans, which were
payable in full on March 1, 2005, did not bear interest.
U.S. Concrete’s venture capital partner, Main Street Equity Ventures II, L.P., of which Vincent D. Foster, U.S.
Concrete’s chairman, is a senior managing director, advanced funds to U.S. Concrete from August 1998 until May 1999
totaling $1.7 million to enable it to pay its expenses in connection with the completion of its IPO and concurrent
acquisitions of six operating businesses. U.S. Concrete repaid these advances, including interest accrued at the rate of 6%
per year, from the gross proceeds of its IPO. U.S. Concrete paid Main Street $213,000, $403,000 and $180,000 in 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively, for reimbursement of expenses related to U.S. Concrete’s acquisition program and certain
financings.
In March 2001, U.S. Concrete modified its non-compete arrangements with Neil J. Vannucci, one of its directors.
U.S. Concrete originally established these arrangements in the acquisition agreement for Bay Cities Building Materials Co.,
Inc., of which he is a former stockholder. The modifications further limit Mr. Vannucci’s right to compete against U.S.
Concrete in exchange for three annual cash payments of $138,000 each to Mr. Vannucci or a designate of Mr. Vannucci, of
which U.S. Concrete paid $92,000 in 2001.
Effective April 2001, U.S. Concrete granted incentive compensation to Mr. Foster, the Chairman of its Board, in the
amount of 5,400 unrestricted shares of its common stock, valued at $7.19 per share, and $25,900 in cash in recognition of
the overall contribution made by Mr. Foster to its various 2001 capital raising initiatives.
T. William Porter, a member of U.S. Concrete’s board of directors, is the Chairman of Porter & Hedges, L.L.P., a
Houston, Texas law firm. Porter & Hedges, L.L.P. performed some legal services for U.S. Concrete in 2001, however the
amount of fees paid to them was not material.
In September 2001, U.S. Concrete issued 12,000 restricted shares of its common stock, valued at $7.97 per share, to
Mr. Porter for nominal consideration and paid to Mr. Porter $64,000 in connection with his election to its board.
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11. RISK CONCENTRATION
U.S. Concrete grants credit, generally without collateral, to its customers, which include general contractors,
municipalities and commercial companies located solely in the United States. Consequently, it is subject to potential credit
risk related to changes in business and economic factors throughout the United States. U.S. Concrete generally has lien
rights in the work it performs, and concentrations of credit risk are limited because of the diversity of its customer base.
Further, management believes that its contract acceptance, billing and collection policies are adequate to minimize any
potential credit risk.
U.S. Concrete maintains cash balances at financial institutions, which may at times be in excess of federally insured
levels. It has not incurred losses related to these balances during the three-year period ended December 31, 2001.
12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation and Other Claims
Bay-Crete Transportation & Materials, LLC alleges in a lawsuit it filed on July 11, 2000 in California Superior Court
in San Mateo County, against U.S. Concrete’s subsidiary, Central, and U.S. Concrete that it possesses beneficiary rights
under a 1983 contract to purchase annually up to 200,000 cubic yards of ready-mixed concrete from Central until March
30, 2082. Under that contract, the purchase price would consist of Central's direct materials costs and an overhead fee.
Bay-Crete alleges that U.S. Concrete breached that contract by refusing to acknowledge Bay-Crete's rights as a beneficiary
of that contract. It is seeking damages of $500 million of lost profits spread over the next 81 years. Central and U.S.
Concrete each filed an answer and cross-complaint in August 2000 which seeks declaratory relief for a determination that
Bay-Crete is not entitled to use the contract. In addition, the cross-complaints seek damages for improper conduct by BayCrete, the general manager of Bay-Crete and a member of Bay-Crete for making demands under the contract in violation of
an order of the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of California, San Francisco Division. A
predecessor to Central previously prevailed in the defense of a similar action brought by the general manager of Bay-Crete
under a related agreement, and Central and U.S. Concrete believe they have meritorious defenses to Bay-Crete's claim and
intend to vigorously defend this suit.
In September 2001, U.S. Concrete entered into a settlement agreement relating to a complaint that Del Webb
California Corp. filed on June 29, 2001 in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Sacramento
against one of its subsidiaries, Central, and two other companies. The complaint related to concrete produced by Central
and delivered for use in a large, single-family home tract-construction project in northern California. The complaint
(1) alleged various causes of action relating to concrete that Central manufactured using a batch mix that did not meet Del
Webb’s specifications and (2) sought relief including damages of at least $7 million. Under the settlement agreement
entered into among the plaintiff and its parent company, Central, U.S. Concrete and one of the other defendants in the case,
Central agreed to accept a back charge in the amount of $608,000 from Del Webb, effectively eliminating a receivable
from Del Webb in that amount, and pay an additional $2.2 million to Del Webb. In connection with the settlement,
Central, U.S. Concrete and the other settling defendant also entered into a two-year supply agreement with Del Webb to
continue to provide concrete for use in Del Webb’s project in northern California at an agreed-to selling price adjustment
from the price charged by Central (which U.S. Concrete believes approximates the discount it would provide for a contract
with similar volume). In December 2001, the Superior Court determined that the parties entered into the settlement in good
faith and the matter was concluded. U.S. Concrete recorded the $608,000 and $2.2 million charges as selling, general and
administrative expenses in the second and third quarters, respectively, of 2001.
From time to time, and currently, U.S. Concrete is subject to various other claims and litigation brought by employees,
customers and other third parties for, among other matters, personal injuries, property damages, product defects and delay
damages that have, or allegedly have, resulted from the conduct of its operations.
U.S. Concrete believes that the resolution of all litigation currently pending or threatened against it or any of its
subsidiaries (including the dispute with Bay-Crete described above) will not have a material adverse effect on its business
or financial condition; however, because of the inherent uncertainty of litigation, U.S. Concrete cannot assure you that the
resolution of any particular claim or proceeding to which it is a party will not have a material adverse effect on its results of
operations for the fiscal period in which that resolution occurs. U.S. Concrete expects in the future it will from time to time
be a party to litigation or administrative proceedings which arise in the normal course of its business.
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Lease Payments
U.S. Concrete leases tracts of land, facilities and equipment it uses in its operations. Rental expense under operating
leases was $11.1 million, $5.5 million and $2.0 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Minimum future annual lease
payments under U.S. Concrete’s noncancellable leases are as follows (in thousands):
Year Ending December 31

2002 ...................................................................................................................................................... $
2003 ......................................................................................................................................................
2004 ......................................................................................................................................................
2005 ......................................................................................................................................................
2006 ......................................................................................................................................................
Thereafter..............................................................................................................................................
$

10,544
7,991
6,454
4,733
3,892
8,952
42,566

Insurance Programs
U.S. Concrete maintains third-party insurance coverage in amounts and against the risks it believes are reasonable.
Under certain components of its insurance program, U.S. Concrete shares the risk of loss with its insurance underwriters by
maintaining high deductibles subject to aggregate annual loss limitations. U.S. Concrete funds these deductibles and
records an expense for expected losses under the programs. The expected losses are determined using a combination of
U.S. Concrete’s historical loss experience and subjective assessments of U.S. Concrete’s future loss exposure.
Underwriting Arrangement
In January 2002, U.S. Concrete entered into an underwriting agreement that allows U.S. Concrete to issue a limited
number of shares of its common stock through an underwriter over a two-year period. To the extent that U.S. Concrete
does not raise a minimum amount through the issuance of equity under this agreement over its two-year term, it would be
required to pay the underwriter up to $100,000 in stand-by fees.
13. SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS
Significant customers are defined as those customers who comprised greater than 10% of a company’s revenues in a
given period. U.S. Concrete did not have any significant customers during 2001, 2000 or 1999.
14. SIGNIFICANT SUPPLIERS
Significant suppliers are defined as those suppliers who comprised greater than 10% of a company’s cost of goods
sold in a given period. Significant suppliers represented purchases (as a percentage of total cost of goods sold) as follows:
Year Ended December 31
2001
2000
1999

Supplier A ......................................................................................................
Supplier B ......................................................................................................

11.7%
0.7

10.9%
5.0

23.3%
17.4

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
In February 2000, U.S. Concrete established a defined contribution 401(k) profit sharing plan for employees meeting
various employment requirements. Eligible employees may contribute amounts up to the lesser of 15% of their annual
compensation or the maximum amount IRS regulations permit. U.S. Concrete matches 100% of employee contributions up
to a maximum of 5% of their compensation. U.S. Concrete paid matching contributions of $1.9 million during 2001 and
$865,000 during 2000.
U.S. Concrete maintained defined contribution profit-sharing and money purchase pension plans for the non-union
employees of certain of its companies for the period from their acquisition by U.S. Concrete through the date that those
companies adopted the U.S. Concrete 401(k) plan. Contributions made to these plans were approximately $143,000, $0 and
$816,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
U.S. Concrete’s subsidiaries are parties to various collective bargaining agreements with labor unions having multiyear terms that expire on a staggered basis. Under these agreements, U.S. Concrete pays specified wages to covered
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employees, observes designated workplace rules and makes payments to multi-employer pension plans and employee
benefit trusts rather than administering the funds on behalf of these employees.
In connection with its collective bargaining agreements U.S. Concrete participates with other companies in the unions’
multi-employer pension plans. These plans cover substantially all of U.S. Concrete’s employees who are members of such
unions. The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended by the Multi-Employer Pension Plan
Amendments Act of 1980, imposes liabilities on employers who are contributors to a multi-employer plan in the event of
the employer’s withdrawal from, or on termination of that plan. During 2001, Carrier Excavation and Foundation
Company, a subsidiary of U.S. Concrete, withdrew from the multi-employer pension plan of the union that represented
various of its employees. That union disclaimed interest in representing those employees. U.S. Concrete has no plans to
withdraw from any other multi-employer plans. These plans do not maintain information on net assets and actuarial
present value of the accumulated share of the plans’ unfunded vested benefits allocable to U.S. Concrete, and amounts, if
any, for which U.S. Concrete may be contingently liable, including with respect to Carrier’s plan withdrawal, are not
ascertainable at this time. U.S. Concrete made contributions to these plans of $10.9 million in 2001, $9.0 million in 2000
and $4.2 million in 1999.
16. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudited; in thousands, except per share data)
First
Quarter

2001
Sales ..................................................................................................... $89,878
1,666
Income from operations .......................................................................
Net income (loss) ................................................................................. (1,827)
(0.08)
Basic earnings (loss) per share.............................................................
(0.08)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share..........................................................
2000
Sales ..................................................................................................... $67,990
4,553
Income from operations .......................................................................
1,516
Net income ...........................................................................................
0.08
Basic earnings per share.......................................................................
0.08
Diluted earnings per share....................................................................

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

$136,299
13,408
4,982
0.21
0.21

$ 138,587
11,883
3,785
0.15
0.15

$128,827
8,980
2,605
0.10
0.10

$106,486
13,991
6,666
0.31
0.31

$ 116,590
15,203
6,732
0.31
0.31

$103,570
7,639
1,946
0.09
0.09

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Acquisitions
From January 1 through March 15, 2002, U.S. Concrete acquired one business. The aggregate consideration it paid in
this transaction consisted of $17.1 million in cash and was funded by U.S. Concrete’s secured credit facility.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
PART III
In Items 10, 11, 12 and 13 below, we are incorporating by reference the information we refer to in those Items from
the definitive proxy statement for our 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. We intend to file that definitive proxy
statement with the SEC by April 30, 2002.
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
Please see the information appearing under the headings “Proposal No. 1—Election of Directors” and “Executive
Officers” in the definitive proxy statement for our 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders for the information this Item 10
requires.
Item 11. Executive Compensation
Please see the information appearing under the heading “Executive Compensation and Other Matters” in the
definitive proxy statement for our 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders for the information this Item 11 requires.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
Please see the information appearing under the heading “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management” in the definitive proxy statement for our 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders for the information this Item
12 requires.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
Please see the information appearing under the heading “Certain Transactions” in the definitive proxy statement for
our 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders for the information this Item 13 requires.
PART IV
Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
(a)(1) Financial Statements.
See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 20.
(2) Financial Statement Schedules.
All financial statement schedules are omitted because they are not required or the required information is shown in our
consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.
(3) Exhibits.
Exhibit
Number

Description

3.1*—Restated Certificate of Incorporation of U.S. Concrete (Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-74855), Exhibit 3.1).
3.2*—Amended and Restated Bylaws of U.S. Concrete, as amended (Post Effective Amendment No. 1 to Form S-3
(Reg. No. 333-42860), Exhibit 4.2).
3.3* —Certificate of Designation of Junior Participating Preferred Stock (Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2000 (File No. 000-26025, Exhibit 3.3).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

4.1* —Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of August 31, 2001, among U.S. Concrete, the
Guarantors named therein, the Lenders named therein, The Chase Manhattan Bank, as administrative agent,
Credit Lyonnais New York Branch and First Union National Bank, as syndication agents, Branch Banking &
Trust Company, as documentation agent, and J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc., as sole bookrunner and lead
arranger. (Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001 (File No. 000-26025), Exhibit 4.1).
U.S. Concrete and some of its subsidiaries are parties to debt instruments under which the total amount of
securities authorized does not exceed 10% of the total assets of U.S. Concrete and its subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis. Pursuant to paragraph 4(iii) (A) of Item 601(b) of Regulation S-K, U.S. Concrete agrees
to furnish a copy of those instruments to the SEC on request.
4.2* —Form of certificate representing common stock (Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-74855), Exhibit 4.3).
4.3* —Rights Agreement by and between U.S. Concrete and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, including
form of Rights Certificate attached as Exhibit B thereto (Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-74855), Exhibit 4.4).
4.4 —First Amendment to Note Purchase Agreement, dated November 30, 2001, among U.S. Concrete, Inc., The
Prudential Insurance Company of America, Metropolitan Life Insurance Company, Teachers Insurance &
Annuity Association, Connecticutt General Life Insurance Company, Allstate Life Insurance Company,
Allstate Life Insurance Company of New York and Southern Farm Bureau Life Insurance Company.
10.1*† —1999 Incentive Plan of U.S. Concrete (Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-74855), Exhibit 10.1).
10.2*† —Employment Agreement between U.S. Concrete and William T. Albanese (Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-74855),
Exhibit 10.2).
10.3*† —Form of Employment Agreement between U.S. Concrete and Michael W. Harlan (Form S-1 (Reg. No. 33374855), Exhibit 10.3).
10.4*† —Form of Employment Agreement between U.S. Concrete and Eugene P. Martineau (Form S-1 (Reg. No.
333-74855), Exhibit 10.4).
10.5*† —Employment Agreement between U.S. Concrete and Michael D. Mitschele (Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-74855),
Exhibit 10.5).
10.6*† —Employment Agreement between U.S. Concrete and Charles W. Sommer (Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-74855),
Exhibit 10.6).
10.7*† —Employment Agreement between U.S. Concrete and Neil J. Vannucci (Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-74855),
Exhibit 10.7).
10.8*† —Employment Agreement between U.S. Concrete and Robert S. Walker (Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-74855),
Exhibit 10.8).
10.9*† —Form of Indemnification Agreement between U.S. Concrete and each of its directors and officers (Form S-1
(Reg. No. 333-74855), Exhibit 10.9).
10.10*† —Form of Employment Agreement between U.S. Concrete and Terry Green (Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-74855),
Exhibit 10.10).
10.11*† —Employment Agreement between U.S. Concrete and Donald C. Wayne (Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1999 (File No. 000-26025), Exhibit 10.11).
10.12*† —Amended and Restated Indemnification Agreements dated August 17, 2000 between U.S. Concrete and each
of its directors and officers (Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000 (File No. 000-26025,
Exhibit 10.1).
10.13*† —Indemnification Agreement dated August 17, 2000 between U.S. Concrete and Raymond C. Turpin (Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000 (File No. 000-26025, Exhibit 10.2).
10.14* —Promissory Note, dated March 2, 2000, issued by Michael W. Harlan to U.S. Concrete, Inc. (Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2001 (File No. 000-26205), Exhibit 10.14).
10.15* —Promissory Note, dated March 2, 2000, issued by Eugene P. Martineau to U.S. Concrete, Inc. (Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2001 (File No. 000-26205), Exhibit 10.15).
10.16* —Agreement, dated March 15, 2000, between U.S. Concrete, Inc. and Neil J. Vannucci (Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2001 (File No. 000-26205), Exhibit 10.16).
10.17* —Underwriting Agreement, dated July 12, 2001, between U.S. Concrete and BB&T Capital Markets, a
division of Scott & Stringfellow, Inc. (Form 8-K dated July 13, 2001 (File No. 000-26025), Exhibit 1.1).
10.18* —Flexible Underwritten Equity FaciLity (FUEL®) Agreement dated as of January 7, 2002 between Ramius
Securities, LLC and U.S. Concrete (Form S-3 (Reg. No. 333-42860), Exhibit 1.2).
10.19* —Amended and restated engagement letter agreement dated as of January 18, 2002 between Credit Lyonnais
Securities (USA) Inc. and U.S. Concrete (Form S-3 (Reg. No. 333-42860), Exhibit 1.3).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

21 —Subsidiaries
23 —Consent of independent public accountants.
99 —Letter to SEC regarding Arthur Andersen quality control system.
* Incorporated by reference to the filing indicated.
† Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
(b) Reports on Form 8-K.
None
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
U.S. CONCRETE, INC.
Date: March 22, 2002
By: /s/ Eugene P. Martineau
Eugene P. Martineau
President and Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on March 22, 2002.
Signature

Title

/s/ Eugene P. Martineau
Eugene P. Martineau

President and Chief Executive Officer and
Director (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Michael W. Harlan
Michael W. Harlan

Chief Financial Officer and Director
(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Charles W. Sommer
Charles W. Sommer

Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Vincent D. Foster
Vincent D. Foster

Director

/s/ William T. Albanese
William T. Albanese

Director

/s/ John R. Colson
John R. Colson

Director

/s/ Michael D. Mitschele
Michael D. Mitschele

Director

/s/ T. William Porter
T. William Porter

Director

/s/ Murray S. Simpson
Murray S. Simpson

Director

/s/ Neil J. Vannucci
Neil J. Vannucci

Director

/s/ Robert S. Walker
Robert S. Walker

Director
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
Officers and Directors
Eugene P. Martineau
Chief Executive Officer and President
Director
Vincent D. Foster
Senior Managing Director
Main Street Equity Ventures II, L.P.
Chairman of the Board
Michael W. Harlan
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Director
Terry Green
Vice President-Operational Integration
Charles W. Sommer
Vice President and Corporate Controller

Robert S. Walker
Individual Investor
Director

Corporate Headquarters
U.S. Concrete, Inc.
2925 Briarpark, Suite 500
Houston, Texas 77042
713.499.6200

Common Stock Transfer Agent
and Registrar
American Stock Transfer
and Trust Company
40 Wall Street
New York, New York 10005
718.921.8247

Raymond C. Turpin, Jr.
Vice President-Technical Affairs

Annual Meeting
Donald C. Wayne
Vice President, Secretary and
General Counsel
William T. Albanese
President
Central Concrete Supply Co., Inc.
Director
Michael D. Mitschele
President
USC Atlantic, Inc.
Director
John R. Colson
Chief Executive Officer
Quanta Services, Inc.
Director
T. William Porter III
Chairman
Porter & Hedges, L.L.P.
Director
Murray S. Simpson
Individual Investor
Director
Neil J. Vannucci
Individual Investor
Director

We have scheduled our annual meeting of stockholders to begin at 9:00 a.m., Central Time, on
Thursday, May 16, 2002, at the Hilton Houston
Westchase & Towers, 9999 Westheimer Road,
Houston, Texas.

Company Stock
U.S. Concrete, Inc. common stock trades under
the symbol “RMIX” on the Nasdaq Stock Market.
As of March 15, 2002, we had approximately
880 stockholders of record (including brokerage
firms and other nominees) of our common stock.
The number of record holders does not bear any
relationship to the number of beneficial owners
of common stock.

Attorneys
Baker Botts L.L.P.
Houston, Texas

Inquiries
You should direct communications concerning
stock transfer requirements or lost certificates to
our transfer agent.

Design: Axiom Design Group, Houston, Texas

U.S. Concrete, Inc.
2925 Briarpark, Suite 500
Houston, Texas 77042
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fax: 713.499.6201

